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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Monday, November 2, 2020 at 2:24 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO LAUNCH INDEPENDENT
REVIEW OF CITY’S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES TO
PREVENT WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 2, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO LAUNCH INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF
CITY’S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES

TO PREVENT WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION
An independent review will be led by former National Labor Relations Board Chairman

William Gould and will be conducted alongside separate review by City Controller
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Acting Human Resources Director Carol
Isen today announced an independent and comprehensive review of the City’s workplace
policies and practices with a focus on claims of bias, harassment, discrimination, and
retaliation. The investigation will be conducted by William B. Gould IV, Charles A. Beardsley
Professor of Law, Emeritus, at the Stanford Law School. This investigation will be in addition
to other efforts by the City to review and address concerns raised by employees about hiring,
discipline, and retention practices with the goal of restoring employee confidence and trust in
the Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) complaint process.
 
This announcement follows Mayor Breed’s Executive Directive 18-02, issued in September
2018, which established consistent standards for employee recruitment, retention, and tracking
of disciplinary actions with the goal of increasing diversity in the City’s workforce and
ensuring the workplace is place free from harassment, bias, and discrimination. Additionally,
in response to concerns raised by San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)
employees, in October 2018, Mayor Breed appointed an independent ombudsperson to review
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
policies and practices with a focus on claims of bias, harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. 
The investigation will be conducted by William B. Gould IV, Charles A. Beardsley Professor of 
Law, Emeritus, at the Stanford Law School. This investigation will be in addition to other efforts 
by the City to review and address concerns raised by employees about hiring, discipline, and 
retention practices with the goal of restoring employee confidence and trust in the Equal 
Employment Opportunity (EEO) complaint process.  
 
This announcement follows Mayor Breed’s Executive Directive 18-02, issued in September 
2018, which established consistent standards for employee recruitment, retention, and tracking of 
disciplinary actions with the goal of increasing diversity in the City’s workforce and ensuring the 
workplace is place free from harassment, bias, and discrimination. Additionally, in response to 
concerns raised by San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) employees, in 
October 2018, Mayor Breed appointed an independent ombudsperson to review and make 
recommendations on reforms needed to ensure transparency, accountability, and the appropriate 
resolution of employee EEO claims at the SFMTA.  
 
“We appreciate Professor Gould bringing in his expertise and experience to ensure that we are 
doing everything we can so that the structures we have in place are not creating a discriminatory 
environment in any way,” said Mayor Breed. “Our workplaces need to be safe and welcoming 
spaces for all our workers, and that starts with making sure we have the right policies and 
procedures in place.” 
 
Carol Isen began serving as Acting Human Resources Director in October and has been 
committed to cultivating a culture of respect, accountability, and belonging, as well as other 
structural changes that will create better transparency for EEO claims to better serve City 
employees. 
 
“Professor Gould, with his long career as a leading intellectual and practitioner in the field of 
labor and employment law and civil rights,” said Acting Human Resources Director Carol Isen. 
“As a third party neutral arbitrator and factfinder, is eminently qualified to lead us through a 
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comprehensive, neutral and fair review of our EEO complaint and investigatory processes to 
ensure they work for all employees.”  
 
“I am honored to receive and accept this charge,” said Professor William Gould. “The people of 
San Francisco expect a government that functions judiciously and efficiently. I am committed to 
a thorough and independent examination, which will be fair, equitable and constructive. I look 
forward to working with all the concerned parties in this endeavor.” 
 
In addition to Professor Gould’s investigation, City Controller Ben Rosenfield will also conduct 
a review of the EEO Division’s internal controls and workflow, in order to assess any 
weaknesses in EEO’s business processes that exposed the City to the misrepresentations made by 
one of its managers. 
 
“We look forward to performing a comprehensive review of the existing EEO process and 
providing practical recommendations that will assist the Department of Human Resources in 
restructuring their EEO systems to better serve the employees of the City and County of 
San Francisco,” said Ben Rosenfield, City Controller. 
  
City data shows persistent inequities in the City workforce with respect to wages, and 
promotional opportunities. Most notably, in comparison to other races, Black employees overall 
hold lower-paying positions, are disciplined more frequently, and file more claims of harassment 
or discrimination than their colleagues of other ethnicities file. The review will include 
interviews, listening sessions, research of existing City policies, examination of relevant 
documents, and identifying best practices from comparable jurisdictions.  
 
“Black and Latinx employees of the City and County of San Francisco experience 
disproportionately adverse treatment,” said Sheryl Davis, Executive Director of the Human 
Rights Commission. “This examination of the City’s EEO process comes at a pivotal time in 
City government when these employees are demanding equitable treatment.” 
 
Professor Gould will focus on:   
 


● The core provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Act: The City’s current 
structure for receiving, investigating, and resolving employee claims of harassment, 
discrimination, retaliation, and other prohibited behavior in the workplace. This includes 
reviewing past processes, outcomes, and findings in employee EEO complaints;  


● Corrective Action and Discipline: Methods to ensure behavior found to be a violation 
of the City’s workplace policies are addressed using fair and equal corrective action 
practices; 


● Data and Reporting: Recommend best practices to track and report data regarding 
employee hiring, discipline, and termination with a focus on gender and race;  


● Training: Review the effectiveness of current training practices for managers and 
supervisors and identifying additional support needed for these individuals in order to 
better supervise and resolve conflicts with employees from diverse backgrounds; and  
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● Restorative practices: Such as mediation and other innovative dispute resolution 
techniques which could be utilized to address and remedy allegations of workplace 
discrimination claims. 


 
The City and County of San Francisco employs over 38,000 people and is home to over 60 
departments that provide vital public services to City residents. Every City department, manager, 
and employee plays a part in shifting the culture in our City workplaces and is responsible for 
ensuring our workspaces are free from bias, harassment, and discrimination.  
 
Professor Gould will have access to any appropriate City departments, records, and information 
deemed necessary to conduct this review. He will work collaboratively with elected officials, the 
Human Resources Department, Human Rights Commission, Office of Racial Equity, City 
agencies, labor stakeholders, employees, and other community stakeholders to receive input and 
make recommendations to the Department of Human Resources within 120 days. His work is 
expected to begin November 30th. 
 
About William B. Gould IV 
William B. Gould IV is Charles A. Beardsley Professor of Law, Emeritus, at Stanford Law 
School. A prolific scholar of labor and discrimination law, Gould has been an influential voice in 
worker–management relations for more than fifty years and served as Consultant to the U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (1966-1967) where he conciliated alleged unlawful 
employment practices, developed proposals for the conciliation process, and provided 
recommendations for the resolution of discrimination claims involving seniority which became 
the basis for early federal court interpretations of Title 7 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. He 
served as Chairman of the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB, 1994–98) and subsequently 
Chairman of the California Agricultural Labor Relations Board (2014-2017). Professor Gould 
has been a member of the National Academy of Arbitrators since 1970.  
 
As NLRB Chairman, he played a critical role in bringing the 1994–95 baseball strike to its 
conclusion and has arbitrated and mediated more than two hundred labor disputes, including the 
1992 and 1993 salary disputes between the Major League Baseball Players Association and the 
Major League Baseball Player Relations Committee. He served as Secretary, Labor and 
Employment Law Section, American Bar Association (1980-81) as well as Independent Monitor 
for FirstGroup America, addressing freedom-of-association complaints (2008–10). Gould also 
served as Special Advisor to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development on project 
labor agreements (2011–12). A critically acclaimed author of ten books and more than sixty law 
review articles, Professor Gould is the recipient of five honorary doctorates for his significant 
contributions to the fields of labor law and labor relations.   
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and make recommendations on reforms needed to ensure transparency, accountability, and the
appropriate resolution of employee EEO claims at the SFMTA.
 
“We appreciate Professor Gould bringing in his expertise and experience to ensure that we are
doing everything we can so that the structures we have in place are not creating a
discriminatory environment in any way,” said Mayor Breed. “Our workplaces need to be safe
and welcoming spaces for all our workers, and that starts with making sure we have the right
policies and procedures in place.”
 
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
labor and employment law and civil rights,” said Acting Human Resources Director Carol
Isen. “As a third party neutral arbitrator and factfinder, is eminently qualified to lead us
through a comprehensive, neutral and fair review of our EEO complaint and investigatory
processes to ensure they work for all employees.”
 
“I am honored to receive and accept this charge,” said Professor William Gould. “The people
of San Francisco expect a government that functions judiciously and efficiently. I am
committed to a thorough and independent examination, which will be fair, equitable and
constructive. I look forward to working with all the concerned parties in this endeavor.”
 
In addition to Professor Gould’s investigation, City Controller Ben Rosenfield will also
conduct a review of the EEO Division’s internal controls and workflow, in order to assess any
weaknesses in EEO’s business processes that exposed the City to the misrepresentations made
by one of its managers.
 
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
promotional opportunities. Most notably, in comparison to other races, Black employees
overall hold lower-paying positions, are disciplined more frequently, and file more claims of
harassment or discrimination than their colleagues of other ethnicities file. The review will
include interviews, listening sessions, research of existing City policies, examination of
relevant documents, and identifying best practices from comparable jurisdictions.
 
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
 

The core provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Act: The City’s current
structure for receiving, investigating, and resolving employee claims of harassment,



discrimination, retaliation, and other prohibited behavior in the workplace. This includes
reviewing past processes, outcomes, and findings in employee EEO complaints;
Corrective Action and Discipline: Methods to ensure behavior found to be a violation
of the City’s workplace policies are addressed using fair and equal corrective action
practices;
Data and Reporting: Recommend best practices to track and report data regarding
employee hiring, discipline, and termination with a focus on gender and race;
Training: Review the effectiveness of current training practices for managers and
supervisors and identifying additional support needed for these individuals in order to
better supervise and resolve conflicts with employees from diverse backgrounds; and
Restorative practices: Such as mediation and other innovative dispute resolution
techniques which could be utilized to address and remedy allegations of workplace
discrimination claims.

 
The City and County of San Francisco employs over 38,000 people and is home to over 60
departments that provide vital public services to City residents. Every City department,
manager, and employee plays a part in shifting the culture in our City workplaces and is
responsible for ensuring our workspaces are free from bias, harassment, and discrimination.
 
Professor Gould will have access to any appropriate City departments, records, and
information deemed necessary to conduct this review. He will work collaboratively with
elected officials, the Human Resources Department, Human Rights Commission, Office of
Racial Equity, City agencies, labor stakeholders, employees, and other community
stakeholders to receive input and make recommendations to the Department of Human
Resources within 120 days. His work is expected to begin November 30th.
 
About William B. Gould IV
William B. Gould IV is Charles A. Beardsley Professor of Law, Emeritus, at Stanford Law
School. A prolific scholar of labor and discrimination law, Gould has been an influential voice
in worker–management relations for more than fifty years and served as Consultant to the U.S.
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (1966-1967) where he conciliated alleged
unlawful employment practices, developed proposals for the conciliation process, and
provided recommendations for the resolution of discrimination claims involving seniority
which became the basis for early federal court interpretations of Title 7 of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964. He served as Chairman of the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB, 1994–98) and
subsequently Chairman of the California Agricultural Labor Relations Board (2014-2017).
Professor Gould has been a member of the National Academy of Arbitrators since 1970.
 
As NLRB Chairman, he played a critical role in bringing the 1994–95 baseball strike to its
conclusion and has arbitrated and mediated more than two hundred labor disputes, including
the 1992 and 1993 salary disputes between the Major League Baseball Players Association
and the Major League Baseball Player Relations Committee. He served as Secretary, Labor
and Employment Law Section, American Bar Association (1980-81) as well as Independent
Monitor for FirstGroup America, addressing freedom-of-association complaints (2008–10).
Gould also served as Special Advisor to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development on project labor agreements (2011–12). A critically acclaimed author of ten
books and more than sixty law review articles, Professor Gould is the recipient of five
honorary doctorates for his significant contributions to the fields of labor law and labor
relations. 
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
 



 
###

 



From: DCP, Reception (CPC)
To: Hillis, Rich (CPC)
Cc: Son, Chanbory (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Mail for Rich Hillis and Historic Preservation Commissioners - 2nd letter re: 944 Chestnut St
Date: Friday, October 30, 2020 2:17:34 PM
Attachments: 2nd letter - 944 Chestnut St.pdf

1 copy for Rich Hillis & 1 copy for each HPC Commissioner

mailto:reception.dcp@sfgov.org
mailto:rich.hillis@sfgov.org
mailto:Chanbory.Son@sfgov.org
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October 28, 2020


Rich Hillis, Director
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103


Re: 944 Chestnut Street, San Francisco


Dear Mr. Hillis,


I am disappointed that neither you nor your colleagues in the Planning Department have yet
answered my letter of Oct. 7, 2020 (see attached).


When do you think I will have an answer to my letter? I am especially interested in why my
wife and I and Nona Russell never received 311 notices. If you can send me the basic principles
that the Planning Department follows with respect to historic houses, it would be appreciated.


Sincerely,


,~.. ~


Anton Bruehl
935 Chestnut St
San Francisco, CA 94109
(415)776-6993
abruehlnidgconsulting.com


Attachment


cc: London Breed
Catherine Stefani
Aaron Jon Hyland
Lydia So
Jonathan Pearlman
Richard S.E. Johns
Chris Foley
Kate Black
Diane Matsuda
NOA Design +Construction
Nona Russell







October 7, 2020


Rich Hillis, Director
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103


Re: 944 Chestnut Street, San Francisco


Dear Mr. Hillis,


I have lived in San Francisco for 41 years and currently reside at 935 Chestnut Street, thus, I am
in very close proximity to the renovation and new construction at 944 Chestnut Street.


I have been in regular contact with NOA Design +Construction and have had cordial and
professional discussions with Michael Shankman and Max Mueller. They have indicated more
than once that they are simply following the permit granted by the Planning Department in 2014
and revised in 2018. We have no issues with NOA Design +Construction or the new owners
who we expect are very nice people.


However, I am puzzled as to why the Planning Department, which includes the Historic
Preservation Commission, approved the designs submitted by the earlier architect. I believe that
944 Chestnut Street is a 1863 historic building and it is very surprising to me that the Planning
Department agreed to take down a very unsightly, non-historic, 1950's add-on, but then granted
a permit to allow for anon-historic add-on where the new roof of the add-on exceeds the entire
slope of the original roof, except for the very top pinnacle of the original roof. I cannot
understand the justification for the Planning Department to allow this very historic house in San
Francisco to be modified to this significant degree.


Further, neither my wife nor I, as well as Nona Russell of 960 Chestnut Street, ever received a
30-day, 311 notice from the Planning Department. We understand that it is the sole
responsibility of the Planning Department to make sure that 311 notices are received by all the
relevant neighbors. I believe that 311 notices are generally sent by certified mail (if they are not,
they should be), and if this is the case, perhaps you can confirm that indeed Ms. Russell and we
actually received the 311 notice which we claim we did not. We, along with Ms. Russell, never
received any plans or updates since the neighborhood meeting which took place in 2014. The
meeting was sparsely attended and the plans were so outlandish that nothing was accomplished
and we received no notifications or any information from the Planning Department since the
2014 meeting and now the construction is well on its way to completion.


Sincerely, r
A


6


Anton Brueh
935 Chestnut St.
San Francisco, CA 94109


cc: London Breed Catherine Stefani Aaron Jon Hyland
Lydia So Jonathan Pearlman Richard S.E. Johns
Chris Foley Kate Black Diane Matsuda
NOA Design +Construction Nona Russell







Anton Brueh


935 Chestnut S-


San Francisco. CA 9410


~► ~*•


$0.50 ° }
US POSTAGE
FIRST-CLASS


PITNEY BOWES
9051684847


94010 ~
OGT 28 2020


c 3 _


~V~' ~F


OCT 3 0 2020
CITY & GC~~NTY ~F S.F.PLANNING DEPARTMENT


r~ECEPTiON DESK


Rich Hillis, Director
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Ave. Suite 1400
San Francisco, CA 94103


~w:-:~ :~::-.._..~:._::.:~;~:;:~: :~z~~s~+~,lz~,~i1~~~t~~1;~~11~Ii~~t~~,~~1sI11~~~~~~Ii~fiit,~~~ff~







From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES FIONA HINZE TO SAN FRANCISCO

MUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: Friday, October 30, 2020 1:57:31 PM
Attachments: 10.29.20 SFMTA Board_Fiona Hinze.pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 at 12:01 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES FIONA
HINZE TO SAN FRANCISCO MUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION AGENCY BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 29, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES FIONA HINZE TO

SAN FRANCISCO MUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A long-time transit disability advocate, Hinze will bring experience advocating for people with
disabilities and ensuring equitable access to transit

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the nomination of transit
accessibility advocate Fiona Hinze to the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
(SFMTA) Board of Directors. If confirmed by the Board of Supervisors, Hinze will bring
experience advocating for transit access for people with disabilities.
 
Hinze lives with Cerebral palsy and she uses her power chair to get around the city, including
on public transit. In addition to her own experience navigating transit, Hinze advocates for
people with disabilities, with a particular focus on employment, transportation access,
healthcare access, and civic participation. She recently completed two three-year terms on the
California State Independent Living Council, following an appointment by then-Governor
Jerry Brown in 2014. She is a co-chair of the Dignity Fund Coalition, and serves on the
Paratransit Coordinating Council, the Senior Disability Working Group of the Vision Zero
Coalition, the board of the Coalition of Agencies Serving the Elderly, and the Sunshine
Ordinance Task Force. If confirmed, she would be the second member of the SFMTA Board
who is of Chinese descent.

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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
 
Hinze lives with Cerebral palsy and she uses her power chair to get around the city, including on 
public transit. In addition to her own experience navigating transit, Hinze advocates for people 
with disabilities, with a particular focus on employment, transportation access, healthcare access, 
and civic participation. She recently completed two three-year terms on the California State 
Independent Living Council, following an appointment by then-Governor Jerry Brown in 2014. 
She is a co-chair of the Dignity Fund Coalition, and serves on the Paratransit Coordinating 
Council, the Senior Disability Working Group of the Vision Zero Coalition, the board of the 
Coalition of Agencies Serving the Elderly, and the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force. If 
confirmed, she would be the second member of the SFMTA Board who is of Chinese descent. 
 
“I am proud to nominate Fiona to serve on the SFMTA Board of Directors. It is important we 
have a member on the SFMTA Board who understands the needs of our disability community 
and the challenges people face getting around our City, whether that’s riding Muni or navigating 
our streets and sidewalks,” said Mayor Breed. “Fiona is a respected and trusted community 
member, and knows how to listen to the needs of people living with disabilities and advocate for 
change. She will bring an important perspective to the SFMTA Board and I’m confident she’ll 
prioritize equity and work to create a more accessible transit system for the people of 
San Francisco.” 
 
“I am honored to be nominated to serve on the SFMTA Board,” said Fiona Hinze. “I will bring 
my expertise in accessible transit to ensure that San Francisco’s transit system is equitable and 
accessible for all San Franciscans, including seniors and people with disabilities.”  
 
Hinze currently works as the Director of Systems Change for Independent Living Resource 
Center San Francisco (ILRCSF), a disability rights advocacy and support organization. She 
dedicates her time to the development of strategies around ILRCSF’s systems change and 
advocacy efforts by tracking key state and local advocacy issues and attending community 
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committee and task force meetings. She works to ensure consumers are aware of advocacy 
opportunities in the community. Hinze is a graduate of Stanford University and has a B.A. in 
Psychology, with a concentration in Health and Development. She was born and raised in 
San Francisco’s Outer Richmond neighborhood. 
 
“Fiona is a tireless, dedicated advocate for people with disabilities and seniors and very active 
with the Tenderloin Traffic Safety Task Force, working to improve traffic safety equity for this 
underserved neighborhood,” said Greg Moore, Director of Safe Programs for the Tenderloin 
Community Benefit District. “Fiona is always highly informed about any issues and topics on 
which she is working, and consistently brings that knowledgeable perspective to every meeting 
she attends.” 
 
The SFMTA Board of Director duties include overseeing the San Francisco Municipal 
Transportation Agency, operates the City’s public transit service, is responsible for all taxi-
related functions of the former Taxi Commission and all traffic regulation and control, traffic 
engineering, parking enforcement, and administrative functions of the former Parking and 
Traffic Commission, including six of the City’s 19 parking garage practices. The Board of 
Directors adopts SFMTA rules setting forth the methods by which Municipal Railway 
performance shall be measured in accordance with industry best practices. 
 
 


### 







 
“I am proud to nominate Fiona to serve on the SFMTA Board of Directors. It is important we
have a member on the SFMTA Board who understands the needs of our disability community
and the challenges people face getting around our City, whether that’s riding Muni or
navigating our streets and sidewalks,” said Mayor Breed. “Fiona is a respected and trusted
community member, and knows how to listen to the needs of people living with disabilities
and advocate for change. She will bring an important perspective to the SFMTA Board and
I’m confident she’ll prioritize equity and work to create a more accessible transit system for
the people of San Francisco.”
 
“I am honored to be nominated to serve on the SFMTA Board,” said Fiona Hinze. “I will
bring my expertise in accessible transit to ensure that San Francisco’s transit system is
equitable and accessible for all San Franciscans, including seniors and people with
disabilities.” 
 
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
with the Tenderloin Traffic Safety Task Force, working to improve traffic safety equity for
this underserved neighborhood,” said Greg Moore, Director of Safe Programs for the
Tenderloin Community Benefit District. “Fiona is always highly informed about any issues
and topics on which she is working, and consistently brings that knowledgeable perspective to
every meeting she attends.”
 
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO TEMPORARILY PAUSE ON EXPANDING ACTIVITIES AND

BUSINESSES REOPENING
Date: Friday, October 30, 2020 1:54:34 PM
Attachments: 10.30.20 Pause on Reopening_COVID-19.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Friday, October 30, 2020 at 11:35 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO TEMPORARILY PAUSE ON
EXPANDING ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESSES REOPENING
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, October 30, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO TEMPORARILY PAUSE ON

EXPANDING ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESSES REOPENING
Due to an increase in COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations, San Francisco will temporarily
pause most planned reopening efforts previously scheduled to resume on Tuesday, November

3rd

 
Department of Public Health will assess situation; and resumption of further reopening is

dependent on improvement of COVID-19 impact on City
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced the City will temporarily pause reopening of additional businesses and
activities scheduled to resume or expand on Tuesday, November 3rd. This pause is due to an
increase in COVID-19 case rates and hospitalizations in San Francisco, coupled with the
current increase in cases in California and across the United States. San Francisco will
continue its strategy of a thoughtful and deliberate reopening, consistent with emerging
scientific data, information and evidence, and will move forward in the safest way possible.
 
This pause is a precautionary measure to ensure San Francisco can continue to reopen safely,
to try to help prevent San Francisco from moving backwards under the State blueprint, and to
protect community health. It is better for San Francisco to take the time to pause now and
assess the data than to keep reopening and risk needing to roll-back reopening at a future date.
Especially with upcoming holidays and events, including Halloween and the election, and

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:dempress@sfgov.org
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


pause most planned reopening efforts previously scheduled to resume on Tuesday, November 3rd 
 


Department of Public Health will assess situation; and resumption of further reopening is 
dependent on improvement of COVID-19 impact on City 


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today 
announced the City will temporarily pause reopening of additional businesses and activities 
scheduled to resume or expand on Tuesday, November 3rd. This pause is due to an increase in 
COVID-19 case rates and hospitalizations in San Francisco, coupled with the current increase in 
cases in California and across the United States. San Francisco will continue its strategy of a 
thoughtful and deliberate reopening, consistent with emerging scientific data, information and 
evidence, and will move forward in the safest way possible. 
 
This pause is a precautionary measure to ensure San Francisco can continue to reopen safely, to 
try to help prevent San Francisco from moving backwards under the State blueprint, and to 
protect community health. It is better for San Francisco to take the time to pause now and assess 
the data than to keep reopening and risk needing to roll-back reopening at a future date. 
Especially with upcoming holidays and events, including Halloween and the election, and 
people’s desire to spend time with their families and travel, it is more important than ever that 
the City carefully evaluate the data and respond appropriately. 
 
The majority of activities and businesses that were scheduled to reopen or expand their capacity 
on Tuesday, November 3rd will be paused. These include opening indoor pools, bowling alleys, 
and locker rooms at fitness centers, and expanding capacity at indoor dining establishments, 
places of worship, and museums, among other businesses and activities that are allowed only if a 
county at least reaches the orange tier under the State’s blueprint. Businesses and activities that 
are currently allowed may continue operating at this time. Limited lower risk activities that were 
planned to move forward on November 3rd (and are not tied to the State’s orange tier) will still 
do so, including expanded filming productions with strict safety protocols, and indoor dining at 
museums up to 25% capacity. Schools will continue to reopen, with more than 75 schools 
approved and a handful of high schools approved to open their doors in the next week.  
 
“Throughout our response to COVID-19, San Francisco has demonstrated our willingness to 
make hard choices and take reopening carefully and deliberately. Given what we’re seeing in our 
numbers here as well as across the country and the world, we want to make sure we continue our 
cautious and deliberate approach, which is why we’ve decided to pause before moving forward 
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with more reopening,” said Mayor Breed. “With this pause, our public health experts can 
evaluate our cases and hospitalizations so that we can work to stay ahead of this virus and keep 
our community safe. We have to all keep doing our part and follow public health guidance to 
keep ourselves, our families, and our entire city safe. Wear your face covering when you go out, 
keep your distance, and avoid gatherings. This is going to be especially important with 
Halloween this weekend and the election on Tuesday. These aren’t normal times and we can’t 
act like they are.” 
 
“Our goal has always been to respond quickly and carefully, watch the data closely, and make 
decisions based on the data, science, and facts,” said Dr. Grant Colfax. “The data is, once again, 
telling us to pause and to extend the time before we reopen the next phase of indoor activities. 
San Francisco’s strategy has always been a deliberate and measured approach. As we increased 
activities throughout the City, we expected to see the virus circulate. We have always focused on 
making sure our healthcare system can handle cases, and while system capacity remains 
adequate, we know this virus can move fast, so we are pausing to evaluate and to ensure we can 
continue to manage the impacts of the virus and keep our communities safe.”  
  
The Department of Public Health will continue to monitor the City’s COVID-19 Key Public 
Health Indicators and other information that will inform the status of further reopening, and will 
determine when it is appropriate for San Francisco to resume its gradual reopening. The City 
continues to encourage San Franciscans to avoid gatherings, wear face coverings when leaving 
home, and keep their distance from other people, and to get tested for COVID-19 if they feel 
sick. 
 
“Although we are disappointed to hear that San Francisco will not be moving forward to allow 
indoor dining at 50% capacity at this time, we understand the need to pause our reopening plan 
in order to keep cases and hospitalizations under control,” said Laurie Thomas, Executive 
Director, Golden Gate Restaurant Association. “This is not the news we were hoping for, but we 
are thankful that indoor dining at 25% capacity is continuing, as is outdoor dining, all adhering to 
our SF Department of Public Health guidelines. We appreciate the hard work of the Mayor, the 
Department of Public Health and our community to keep our city from facing the surges and 
backtracking of reopening that we are seeing across many parts of the country and 
internationally.” 
 
The following activities scheduled to resume on November 3rd will be put on pause: 


• Reopening of indoor pools, indoor locker rooms and showers at gyms, and indoor family 
entertainment activities like bowling alleys. 


• Expanding capacity from 25% to 50% (up to 200 people) at indoor restaurants, indoor 
food courts, movie theaters, museums, zoos, and aquariums, and houses of worship. 


• Expanding capacity at outdoor events from 200 to 300 people at outdoor worship and 
political protests. 
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The following activities scheduled to resume on November 3rd, will continue: 
• Reopening indoor dining at museums at 25% capacity (up to 100 people). 
• Expanding outdoor film production from 12 to 25 people with safety protocols and easing 


restrictions on indoor film production with testing and ventilation requirements or an 
approved health and safety plan. 


• Allowing additional types of outdoor live performances with up to six performers in a 
drive-in setting. 


• Allowing increased real estate showing and open houses with social distancing protocols 
in place. 


 
Additionally, to continue to operate at 25%, indoor restaurants and personal service providers 
that deliver services requiring mask removal will need to post signage about what ventilation 
measures they have put into place and comply with at least one of a list of recommended 
ventilations strategies by November 17.  
 
One of the key indicators of COVID-19 prevalence in the city, the number of new cases per day 
per 100,000 people, has increased over the last two weeks from a low of 3.14 cases per 100,000 
people to 4.17 cases per 100,000 people. The rate of increase in hospitalizations of COVID-19 
patients is also a key indicator that affects the pace of reopening. San Francisco recently hit a low 
of 21 people in the hospital with COVID, but that number has begun to climb again and is now at 
37 people.  
 
Despite this recent increase in cases, San Francisco continues to do relatively well in mitigating 
the spread of COVID-19 in the community. San Francisco has the lowest death rate of any large 
city in the U.S. and has the second lowest test positivity rate of any large city. San Francisco 
leads in testing, with 5,100 average tests per day and more than 664,000 tests conducted to date. 
The City’s relative success to-date is due to its COVID-19 response infrastructure, which 
includes testing, contact tracing, and support services, its deliberate and measured approach to 
reopening, and a willingness to pause and assess the data before moving forward on reopening.  
 
The Department of Public Health will monitor the Health Indicators, the risk of specific 
activities, the estimated reproductive rate of the virus, the regional data and the State’s actions in 
determining when and how to move forward, pause, or dial back reopening. More information 
about San Francisco’s reopening timeline can be found at https://sf.gov/step-by-step/reopening-
san-francisco. 
 


### 
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people’s desire to spend time with their families and travel, it is more important than ever that
the City carefully evaluate the data and respond appropriately.
 
The majority of activities and businesses that were scheduled to reopen or expand their
capacity on Tuesday, November 3rd will be paused. These include opening indoor pools,
bowling alleys, and locker rooms at fitness centers, and expanding capacity at indoor dining
establishments, places of worship, and museums, among other businesses and activities that
are allowed only if a county at least reaches the orange tier under the State’s blueprint.
Businesses and activities that are currently allowed may continue operating at this time.
Limited lower risk activities that were planned to move forward on November 3rd (and are not
tied to the State’s orange tier) will still do so, including expanded filming productions with
strict safety protocols, and indoor dining at museums up to 25% capacity. Schools will
continue to reopen, with more than 75 schools approved and a handful of high schools
approved to open their doors in the next week.
 
“Throughout our response to COVID-19, San Francisco has demonstrated our willingness to
make hard choices and take reopening carefully and deliberately. Given what we’re seeing in
our numbers here as well as across the country and the world, we want to make sure we
continue our cautious and deliberate approach, which is why we’ve decided to pause before
moving forward with more reopening,” said Mayor Breed. “With this pause, our public health
experts can evaluate our cases and hospitalizations so that we can work to stay ahead of this
virus and keep our community safe. We have to all keep doing our part and follow public
health guidance to keep ourselves, our families, and our entire city safe. Wear your face
covering when you go out, keep your distance, and avoid gatherings. This is going to be
especially important with Halloween this weekend and the election on Tuesday. These aren’t
normal times and we can’t act like they are.”
 
“Our goal has always been to respond quickly and carefully, watch the data closely, and make
decisions based on the data, science, and facts,” said Dr. Grant Colfax. “The data is, once
again, telling us to pause and to extend the time before we reopen the next phase of indoor
activities. San Francisco’s strategy has always been a deliberate and measured approach. As
we increased activities throughout the City, we expected to see the virus circulate. We have
always focused on making sure our healthcare system can handle cases, and while system
capacity remains adequate, we know this virus can move fast, so we are pausing to evaluate
and to ensure we can continue to manage the impacts of the virus and keep our communities
safe.” 
The Department of Public Health will continue to monitor the City’s COVID-19 Key Public
Health Indicators and other information that will inform the status of further reopening, and
will determine when it is appropriate for San Francisco to resume its gradual reopening. The
City continues to encourage San Franciscans to avoid gatherings, wear face coverings when
leaving home, and keep their distance from other people, and to get tested for COVID-19 if
they feel sick.
 
“Although we are disappointed to hear that San Francisco will not be moving forward to allow
indoor dining at 50% capacity at this time, we understand the need to pause our reopening
plan in order to keep cases and hospitalizations under control,” said Laurie Thomas, Executive
Director, Golden Gate Restaurant Association. “This is not the news we were hoping for, but
we are thankful that indoor dining at 25% capacity is continuing, as is outdoor dining, all
adhering to our SF Department of Public Health guidelines. We appreciate the hard work of
the Mayor, the Department of Public Health and our community to keep our city from facing



the surges and backtracking of reopening that we are seeing across many parts of the country
and internationally.”
 
The following activities scheduled to resume on November 3rd will be put on pause:

Reopening of indoor pools, indoor locker rooms and showers at gyms, and indoor
family entertainment activities like bowling alleys.
Expanding capacity from 25% to 50% (up to 200 people) at indoor restaurants, indoor
food courts, movie theaters, museums, zoos, and aquariums, and houses of worship.
Expanding capacity at outdoor events from 200 to 300 people at outdoor worship and
political protests.

 
The following activities scheduled to resume on November 3rd, will continue:

Reopening indoor dining at museums at 25% capacity (up to 100 people).
Expanding outdoor film production from 12 to 25 people with safety protocols and
easing restrictions on indoor film production with testing and ventilation requirements
or an approved health and safety plan.
Allowing additional types of outdoor live performances with up to six performers in a
drive-in setting.
Allowing increased real estate showing and open houses with social distancing
protocols in place.

 
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
 
One of the key indicators of COVID-19 prevalence in the city, the number of new cases per
day per 100,000 people, has increased over the last two weeks from a low of 3.14 cases per
100,000 people to 4.17 cases per 100,000 people. The rate of increase in hospitalizations of
COVID-19 patients is also a key indicator that affects the pace of reopening. San Francisco
recently hit a low of 21 people in the hospital with COVID, but that number has begun to
climb again and is now at 37 people.
 
Despite this recent increase in cases, San Francisco continues to do relatively well in
mitigating the spread of COVID-19 in the community. San Francisco has the lowest death rate
of any large city in the U.S. and has the second lowest test positivity rate of any large city. San
Francisco leads in testing, with 5,100 average tests per day and more than 664,000 tests
conducted to date.
The City’s relative success to-date is due to its COVID-19 response infrastructure, which
includes testing, contact tracing, and support services, its deliberate and measured approach to
reopening, and a willingness to pause and assess the data before moving forward on
reopening.
 
The Department of Public Health will monitor the Health Indicators, the risk of specific
activities, the estimated reproductive rate of the virus, the regional data and the State’s actions
in determining when and how to move forward, pause, or dial back reopening. More
information about San Francisco’s reopening timeline can be found at https://sf.gov/step-by-
step/reopening-san-francisco.
 

###

https://data.sfgov.org/stories/s/epem-wyzb
https://sf.gov/step-by-step/reopening-san-francisco
https://sf.gov/step-by-step/reopening-san-francisco


 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); Hillis, Rich (CPC); RUIZ-

ESQUIDE, ANDREA (CAT); WONG, VICTORIA (CAT)
Subject: HPC Calendars for November 4, 2020
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 3:29:26 PM
Attachments: 20201104_hpc.pdf

20201104_hpc.docx
HPC Advance - 20201104.xlsx
HPC Hearing Results 2020.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for November 4, 2020.
 
Cheers,
 
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
mailto:CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org
mailto:CPC.TAC-Preservation-Team@sfgov.org
mailto:rich.hillis@sfgov.org
mailto:Andrea.Ruiz-Esquide@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Andrea.Ruiz-Esquide@sfcityatty.org
mailto:Victoria.Wong@sfcityatty.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
  
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist 
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.   
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, 
please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or 
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la 
audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo 
menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的至


少48個小時提出要求。 


TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o 
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag 
nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным 
слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум 
за 48 часов до начала слушания.



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

mailto:commissions.secretary@fgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@fgov.org
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Remote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings 
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing 
and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to 
submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit 
the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television 
station.  


The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the 
meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 516 2849. This information will also be provided on the 
Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission. 
 


 ROLL CALL:   
 President: Aaron Hyland 
 Vice President: Diane Matsuda 


  Commissioners:                 Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan 
Pearlman, Lydia So 


 
A. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. 
 
The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on 
the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public 
comment, the commission is limited to:  
 
(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or 
(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or  
(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a)) 


 
B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
1. Director’s Announcements  
  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

http://www.sfgovtv.org/
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2. Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements 
 
C. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


3. President’s Report and Announcements 
  
4. Consideration of Adoption: 


• Draft Minutes for ARC September 19, 2020 
• Draft Minutes for HPC October 7, 2020 
• Draft Minutes for HPC October 21, 2020 


 
Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to 
vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the 
Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the 
minutes because they did not attend the meeting. 
 


5. Commission Comments & Questions 
• Disclosures. 
• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 


make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Historic Preservation Commission. 


 
D. REGULAR CALENDAR   
 


6. 2014.1036ENV (R. SCHUETT: (628) 652-7546) 
447 BATTERY STREET – Review and Comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report 
– The project site is located at the northwest corner of Battery and Merchant streets on the 
block bounded by Washington, Sansome, Battery and Clay streets, Assessor’s Block 0206, 
Lot 002 (District 3). The proposed project would demolish most of the existing three-story, 
45-foot-tall, 25,180 gross-square-foot (gsf) building, built in 1907, which is currently 
occupied by office and retail uses and is individually eligible for the listing on the California 
Register of Historical Resources. The proposed project would retain the existing building 
façade; replacing the internal structure; and construct an addition to create a new 18-story, 
200-foot-tall hotel with 198 hotel rooms on 16 floors, a ground-floor lobby and restaurant 
and a second restaurant on the 18th floor. Four below-grade basement levels would 
contain conference rooms, mechanical equipment, a loading area, and 24 vehicle and 32 
bicycle parking spaces with access provided via a new driveway on Merchant Street. A new 
privately owned public open space (POPOS) and streetscape improvements would be 
provided along Merchant Street. The project site is within the Downtown Office (C-3-O) 
Use District and 200-S Height and Bulk District. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment 


 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/20200916_arc_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/20201007_hpc_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/20201021_hpc_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2014-1036ENV.pdf
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7. 2020-009508PCA   (S. CALTAGIRONE: (628) 652-7425) 
AMERICAN INDIAN CULTURAL DISTRICT EXPANSION ORDINANCE – Administrative Code 
Amendment – to amend Chapter 107 of the Administrative Code to expand the 
boundaries of the American Indian Cultural District (District) and provide additional details 
regarding the cultural and historical significance of the District; and affirming the Planning 
Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act.   
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for  Approval with Modifications 
 


8. 2020-003248PCA (V. FLORES (628-652-7525) 
STATE-MANDATED ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT CONTROLS [BF 201008] – Planning Code 
Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to clarify the ministerial approval 
process for certain Accessory Dwelling Units meeting certain requirements in single-family 
and multifamily buildings; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the 
California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General 
Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings 
of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302. 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Adopt a Recommendation for  Approval 
(Continued from Regular Hearing on October 21, 2020) 


 
ADJOURNMENT 
  



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/hpcpackets/2020-009508PCA.pdf
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Hearing Procedures 
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing 
schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. Presentation by Staff; 
2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, 


engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the 


hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair; 
6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions; 
7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened 


by the Chair; 
8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
Hearing Materials 
Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents: 


• Planning Department Case Executive Summary 
• Planning Department Case Report 
• Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions 
• Public Correspondence 


 
Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record 
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed 
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.   
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation 
Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the 
business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the 
official record.   
 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages 
must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies. 
 



http://www.sfplanning.org/
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Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for 
distribution.  
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation 
Commission hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
CEQA Determination - EIR ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals** 


 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 
For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a 
Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation 
Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
Proposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

[bookmark: _Hlk48037677]The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 516 2849. This information will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.



 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Aaron Hyland

	Vice President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So



A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))



B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1.	Director’s Announcements	

	

2.	Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



3.	President’s Report and Announcements

	

4.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for ARC September 19, 2020

· Draft Minutes for HPC October 7, 2020

· Draft Minutes for HPC October 21, 2020



Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they did not attend the meeting.



5.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



D.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



6.	2014.1036ENV	(R. SCHUETT: (628) 652-7546)

447 BATTERY STREET – Review and Comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report

– The project site is located at the northwest corner of Battery and Merchant streets on the block bounded by Washington, Sansome, Battery and Clay streets, Assessor’s Block 0206, Lot 002 (District 3). The proposed project would demolish most of the existing three-story, 45-foot-tall, 25,180 gross-square-foot (gsf) building, built in 1907, which is currently occupied by office and retail uses and is individually eligible for the listing on the California Register of Historical Resources. The proposed project would retain the existing building façade; replacing the internal structure; and construct an addition to create a new 18-story, 200-foot-tall hotel with 198 hotel rooms on 16 floors, a ground-floor lobby and restaurant and a second restaurant on the 18th floor. Four below-grade basement levels would contain conference rooms, mechanical equipment, a loading area, and 24 vehicle and 32 bicycle parking spaces with access provided via a new driveway on Merchant Street. A new privately owned public open space (POPOS) and streetscape improvements would be provided along Merchant Street. The project site is within the Downtown Office (C-3-O) Use District and 200-S Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment



7.	2020-009508PCA  	(S. CALTAGIRONE: (628) 652-7425)

AMERICAN INDIAN CULTURAL DISTRICT EXPANSION ORDINANCE – Administrative Code Amendment – to amend Chapter 107 of the Administrative Code to expand the boundaries of the American Indian Cultural District (District) and provide additional details regarding the cultural and historical significance of the District; and affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act.  

[bookmark: _GoBack]Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for  Approval with Modifications



8.	2020-003248PCA	(V. FLORES (628-652-7525)

STATE-MANDATED ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT CONTROLS [BF 201008] – Planning Code Amendments – Ordinance amending the Planning Code to clarify the ministerial approval process for certain Accessory Dwelling Units meeting certain requirements in single-family and multifamily buildings; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation:  Adopt a Recommendation for  Approval

(Continued from Regular Hearing on October 21, 2020)



ADJOURNMENT




Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination - EIR

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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Advance

				To:		Historic Preservation Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				November 4, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Five Applications

		2014.1036E		447 Battery Street										Schuett

						DEIR

		2020-000132CWP		American Indian Cultural District										Caltagirone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2020-003248PCA		State-Mandated ADU Ordinance				fr: 10/21						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

				November 18, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2016-008192SRV		1830 Sutter Street 										McMillen

						Article 10 designation of the Japanese YWCA - Adoption

		2018-000505COA		370 Lexington Street										Salgado

						 legalizing work done at the front and secondary facades

				Citywide Cultural Resources Survey Update										Boudreaux

						Informational

				December 2, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Five Applications

				December 16, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2017-012086ENV		770 Woolsey Avenue										Callagy

						Review and comment on draft preservation alternatives

		2019-021869COA		1216 Fulton Street										Ferguson

						COA for vertical and horizontal addition

				January 6, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2018-001788ENV		554 Fillmore Street										Ferguson

						Review and comment on PMND

		2015-005890DES		554 Fillmore Street										Ferguson

						Landmark Designation Recommendation
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Action Items

		HPC Action Items								 

		Date		Item						CONT.		NOTES		HEARING DATE

		3/7/12		Priorities on Landmark Designation Work Program										TBD

						Pending completion of Preserve America Grant Tasks

		3/21/12		Discussion of incentives and preservation tools for historic cultural uses/resources										TBD

						Follow-up based on 12/5/12 Hearing

		6/20/12		HPC Review and Comment of CEQA Ducuments										TBD

						Pending request with Environmental Planning

		12/19/12		Condition of Mothers Building										TBD

						With RecPark and Arts Commission Representatives

		2/6/13		Update on monastery materials to return back to Santa Maria de 'Ovila Monastery in Spain										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status update on Settlement Agreement re: mitigation monitoring and enforcement										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger & Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger

		3/6/13		Update on Preservation Website										5/15/13

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		5/15/13		2nd Update on Preservation Website										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		2/5/14		Discuss HPC promotion and involvement in 20% Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credit Program										TBD

						Request by Vice President Wolfram, with representatives from OHP

		2/19/14		Update on Draft Preservation Element										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda, President Hasz 

		2/19/14		Discuss local application of Secretary of the Interior's Standards										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Pearlman

		2/19/14		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda
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To:		Staff

From:	Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:		Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1152

NEXT MOTION No:  0429

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

   October 21, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003248PCA

		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [BF 201008]

		Flores

		Continued to November 4, 2020

		+7 -0



		R-1145

		2020-008542LBR

		2200 Cesar Chavez Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1146

		2020-008543LBR

		2025 Jerrold Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1147

		2020-008540LBR

		2201 Sutter Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1148

		2020-008541LBR

		412 Valencia Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1149

		2020-008544LBR

		225 11th  Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1150

		2020-008538LBR

		2237 Mason Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0428

		2019-023182COA

		351 San Carlos Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023182VAR

		351 San Carlos Street

		Cisneros

		Asst. ZA Closed PC, indicated an intent to Grant

		



		R-1151

		2020-008490DES

		1830 Sutter Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Resolution to Initiate

		+6 -0 (Matsuda recused)



		

		2015-007181OTH

		Preservation Reporting and Landmarks Update

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   October 7, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft HPC Minutes for September 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1140

		2020-004819MLS

		450 Pacific Avenue

		Kirby

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Pearlman recused)



		R-1141

		2020-004811MLS

		1315 Waller Street

		Taylor

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1142

		2020-004685MLS

		59 Potomac Street

		Ferguson

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0427

		2019-012604PTA

		1035 Howard Street

		Giacomucci

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		R-1143

		2020-008397CRV

		2868 Mission Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		R-1144

		2020-008400CRV

		535 Green Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		

		2019-021884ENV

		2500 Mariposa Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   September 16, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-023623COA

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   September 16, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 19, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 2, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014146ENV

		520 John Muir Drive

		Greving

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		R-1135

		2020-007531LBR

		915 Howard Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1136

		2020-007532LBR

		1315 18th Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1137

		2020-007533LBR

		989 Market Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1138

		2020-007534LBR

		2480 San Bruno Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1139

		2020-007535LBR

		906 Cole Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  September 2, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to September 16, 2020

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0424

		2020-001258PTA-02

		447 Minna Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0425

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0426

		2019-017681COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive -Music Concourse, Golden Gate Park

		Taylor

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)







   August 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to September 2, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0421

		2020-004998COA

		35 Onondaga Avenue

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-1128

		2020-006843LBR

		1663 Mission Street, Suite 225

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1129

		2020-006847LBR

		1615 20th STREET

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1130

		2020-006871LBR

		1330 25th STREET

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1131

		2020-006872LBR

		919 Kearny Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1132

		2020-006873LBR

		376 Fillmore Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1133

		2020-006874LBR

		718 Grant Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0422

		2019-005728COA

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2019-005728VAR

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued Indefinitely

		



		M-0423

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street (3359 24th Street)

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions as amended directing the Sponsor to continue working with staff on design, specifically:

1. Color of exterior cladding to be lighter and in keeping with existing;

2. No wholesale removal of roof tiles;

3. Double entry doors;

4. Interior detailing of stair and ceiling; and

5. Bartlett side addition window to relate to the 24th Street side.

and, conduct additional community outreach as it relates to construction.

		+7 -0



		R-1134

		2020-006641DES

		“History of Medicine in California” Frescoes, 533 Parnassus Avenue

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Landmark Designation as amended that the murals remain together on Parnassus.

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		2020-005090OTH

		UCSF Comprehensive Parnassus Heights Plan

		Cleemann

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Centering Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  July 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		R-1127

		2016-003351CWP

		Resolution Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments, directing Staff to continue working with the HPC Officers on the final resolution language.

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to August 19, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 SCOTT STREET

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to September 2, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD

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

		Acting ZA Continued to August 19, 2020

		



		R-1125

		2020-005179PCA

		Continuation of Use for Certain Nonconforming Parking Lots - Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District [BF 200421]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		R-1126

		2019-006264DES

		1315 Waller Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Resolution Supporting the Nomination

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)







  June 17, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes For HPC May 6, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		

		Motion Directing Staff to Draft a Resolution supporting the Department’s efforts re: Racial & Social Equity

		

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		

		Letter Supporting The Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to July 1, 2020

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2019-017767DES

		Lake Street Landmark District

		LaValley

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		M-0419

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		M-0420

		2015-013876PTA

		207 Powell Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’farrell Street

		McKellar

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   June 3, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		



		

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 20, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 3, 2020

		



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 6, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for ARC February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for HPC April 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended and Corrected

		+7 -0



		

		

		Certified Local Government Program (CLG) Annual Report

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 2020.

		+7 -0



		R-1124

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		

		Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   April 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0416

		2019-017569COA

		735 Montgomery Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0417

		2019-016968COA

		1086-1088 Fulton Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0418

		2020-000441COA

		53-57 Potomac Street

		Ferguson

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		R-1120

		2020-003292LBR

		715 Harrison Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1121

		2020-003293LBR

		1414 Ocean Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1122

		2020-003294LBR

		25 Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1123

		2020-003295LBR

		285 South Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  April 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Reviewed and Commented

		







April 1, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		







April 1, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

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

		53-57 POTOMAC STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 VALLEJO STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 1, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022126COA-03

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

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

		







February 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0412

		2016-013739COA-02

		933-935 Valencia Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0413

		2019-001839COA

		1128 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0414

		2019-001318COA

		740 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Historic wood siding rather that plaster;

2. Distinctly different wood siding to be used for the bay windows; and 

3. Wood windows for the rear elevation.

		+7 -0



		M-0415

		2019-022126COA-02

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended to eliminate the proposed lighted sign.

		+5 -0 (Hyland recused; So absent)







February 5, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-004772COA

		3250-70 18th Street

		Giacomucci

		Reviewed and Commented

		







February 5, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to March 18, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0411

		2019-019493PTA

		972 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1118

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016220OTH

		Mural Projects

		Gunther

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1119

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Initiated

		+7 -0







January 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street, Landmark #31

		Ferguson

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Hyland – President;

Matsuda – Vice.



Pearlman, Black, So – ARC;

Matsuda – Cultural Heritage Liaison.

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		SB 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		None - Informational

		



		R-1115

		2020-000031LBR

		2883 Mission Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1116

		2020-000032LBR

		160 Ellis Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		R-1117

		2020-000035LBR

		1201 Divisadero Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0407

		2019-022126COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Eliminating the provision for any extension beyond March 31, 2021; and

2. Recommending Rec&Park conduct community outreach regarding the effect of lighting and implement measures to mitigate its impact.

		+4 -1 (Hyland recused; Foley absent)



		M-0408

		2018-010825COA

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)



		

		2018-010825VAR

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Acting ZA Closed the public hearing and indicated an Intent to Grant

		



		M-0409

		2017-001073COA

		1701 Franklin Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Pearlman recused; Foley, Matsuda absent)



		M-0410

		2019-007049COA

		600 Stockton Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** RACHAEL TANNER UNANIMOUSLY CONFIRMED AS SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING

COMMISSIONER
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 10:36:13 AM
Attachments: 10.27.20 Planning Commission_Rachael Tanner.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 3:06 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** RACHAEL TANNER UNANIMOUSLY
CONFIRMED AS SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING COMMISSIONER
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 27, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
RACHAEL TANNER UNANIMOUSLY CONFIRMED AS

SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING COMMISSIONER
Tanner, nominated by Mayor Breed, will bring an equity lens and neighborhood planning

experience to the Planning Commission
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed’s nomination to appoint Rachael Tanner to
the San Francisco Planning Commission was approved today by the Board of Supervisors with
a unanimous vote. 
 
Tanner currently serves as the Assistant Director of Planning and Development Services for
the City of Palo Alto, where she oversees Palo Alto’s planning and building permitting
functions, including inspections. Tanner is currently a Commissioner on the San Francisco
Board of Appeals, and was appointed to the Board in 2018 by then President of the Board of
Supervisors Malia Cohen. She will resign from the Board of Appeals to join the Planning
Commission. 
 
“Rachael is experienced in city planning, has a demonstrated commitment to equity, and will
bring her own experience living and working in the southeast part of San Francisco to the
Commission,” said Mayor Breed. “I am confident Rachael will be a valuable member of the
Commission and will contribute to our efforts to make San Francisco a more, livable,
affordable, and resilient city for generations to come.”
 

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
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed’s nomination to appoint Rachael Tanner to the 
San Francisco Planning Commission was approved today by the Board of Supervisors with a 
unanimous vote.  
 
Tanner currently serves as the Assistant Director of Planning and Development Services for the 
City of Palo Alto, where she oversees Palo Alto’s planning and building permitting functions, 
including inspections. Tanner is currently a Commissioner on the San Francisco Board of 
Appeals, and was appointed to the Board in 2018 by then President of the Board of Supervisors 
Malia Cohen. She will resign from the Board of Appeals to join the Planning Commission.  
 
“Rachael is experienced in city planning, has a demonstrated commitment to equity, and will 
bring her own experience living and working in the southeast part of San Francisco to the 
Commission,” said Mayor Breed. “I am confident Rachael will be a valuable member of the 
Commission and will contribute to our efforts to make San Francisco a more, livable, affordable, 
and resilient city for generations to come.” 
 
Prior to working in Palo Alto, Tanner worked at the San Francisco Planning Department as a 
Senior Planner on the Excelsior and Outer Mission Neighborhood Strategy, which was 
developed to guide the City’s focus and investment in the commercial corridors of Mission Street 
and Geneva Avenue. She implemented outreach strategies during this process, including 
listening to community stakeholders by organizing focus groups and engaging monolingual 
residents and community organizations, such as Communities United for Health and Justice and 
the Excelsior Action Group. 
 
“I am honored to serve on the Planning Commission,” said Rachael Tanner. “I will be a voice 
joining in the chorus of our city crying out for racial and social equity, for equitably-planned 
housing, and for a brighter future despite the pandemic.” 
 
She continues to stay connected to the community through her volunteer work as a mentor to a 
middle school student and regularly performs marriage ceremonies. Tanner has lived in the 
Bayview Hunters Point and currently resides in SoMa. She earned a Bachelor’s Degree in 
Political Science from the University of Michigan and her Master’s in City Planning from the 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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The San Francisco Planning Commission consists of seven commissioners appointed by the 
Mayor and the President of the Board of Supervisors, and Commissioners serve four-year terms. 
The Commission oversees the Planning Department, which plays a central role in guiding the 
growth and development of the City. The Department works with other City agencies and the 
community to help balance the needs of residents, businesses, and civic leaders to protect the 
environment and historical resources, create inspiring and livable urban spaces, cultivate 
neighborhood resilience, and enforce good land use practices. The Commission is also 
responsible for the stewardship and maintenance of San Francisco’s General Plan. 
 
 


### 







Prior to working in Palo Alto, Tanner worked at the San Francisco Planning Department as a
Senior Planner on the Excelsior and Outer Mission Neighborhood Strategy, which was
developed to guide the City’s focus and investment in the commercial corridors of Mission
Street and Geneva Avenue. She implemented outreach strategies during this process, including
listening to community stakeholders by organizing focus groups and engaging monolingual
residents and community organizations, such as Communities United for Health and Justice
and the Excelsior Action Group.
 
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
Mayor and the President of the Board of Supervisors, and Commissioners serve four-year
terms. The Commission oversees the Planning Department, which plays a central role in
guiding the growth and development of the City. The Department works with other City
agencies and the community to help balance the needs of residents, businesses, and civic
leaders to protect the environment and historical resources, create inspiring and livable urban
spaces, cultivate neighborhood resilience, and enforce good land use practices. The
Commission is also responsible for the stewardship and maintenance of San Francisco’s
General Plan.
 
 

###
 



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for holiday lights and SkyStar
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 10:26:18 AM

Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
                             

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person services, but we are operating remotely.
Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our services here. 

-----Original Message-----
From: Lainie Motamedi <lmotamedi@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 7:08 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC)
<aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>; Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC)
<richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC)
<lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC) <recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo, RPD (REC)
<rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman (BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for holiday lights and SkyStar

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Rec and Park Commissioners and Board President Yee,

I am an Inner Sunset / Golden Gate Heights resident and I am writing to fully support having the SkyStar in Golden
Gate Park for the 150th Anniversary celebration. I have a view of it from most windows in my home. It is heart
warming to see something festive right now- and I adore its lighting at night as well. It entertains my kids and is a
delight. We’ve been waiting for months to see it in action. I’ve been down to see the SkyStar up close and was very
impressed by the crowd management, the safety precautions, and it is so quiet!

I am also looking forward to seeing the holiday lights in Peacock Meadow. I’m all for anything fun and light-hearted
these days. Thank you for bringing joy to the neighborhood, the city, and all visitors to the Park!

I just wanted to be sure that you are aware of the community support the SkyStar and the Peacock Meadow lighting
has from neighbors.
Keep up the good work!

Best,
Lainie Motamedi
Resident on Moraga St at 12th Ave

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Michelle.Taylor@sfgov.org


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for SkyStar and Holiday lighting
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 10:16:43 AM
Attachments: image007.png
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image012.png

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

                                   
 
 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

From: Jenn Fox <jgreyfox@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, October 29, 2020 7:28 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo, RPD (REC)
<rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC) <recpark.commission@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for SkyStar and Holiday lighting
 

 

Dear Commissioners:
I am emailing to support the Whimsical Wonderland of lights coming to Golden Gate Park and the
SkyStar. These feel festive additions that will encourage families and all city residents to continue
using the park for healthy and safe recreation. Golden Gate Park is a gift to San Francisco and its
people and it is efforts like these that help keep it lively. Thanks for all your work.

With gratitude, 
Jenn Fox
1265 6th Avenue
SF resident for 28 years. 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Michelle.Taylor@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://www.facebook.com/sfplanning
https://twitter.com/sfplanning
http://www.youtube.com/sfplanning
http://www.flickr.com/photos/sfplanning
https://nextdoor.com/pages/san-francisco-planning/
http://signup.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19


























From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: Golden gate park sky wheel
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 10:16:19 AM

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
From: Nicholas C. Belloni <nbelloni@swpsf.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 11:32 PM
To: Hyland, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>; Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; CPC-
Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Johns,
Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan
(CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC)
<recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>
Subject: Golden gate park sky wheel

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Hello Everyone,

I am writing in support of the sky wheel in golden gate park. I have to say this is a nice addition to the park and to
the concourse. Being a native San Franciscan and life long resident of the Richmond district. I am happy to have this
sky wheel here in the Richmond. So many reasons this is important to the Richmond, Sunset and the city as whole.

Community, the concourse has always been a gathering place, from it’s inception it was meant for people to gather
and celebrate, during this time in this worlds history, people need something to have hope and celebrate, this sky
wheel, is kind of and emergence from the shelter in place. Being around the wheel on walks this week there is a joy
and happiness I have seen, like wow this is something, a slow return to normalcy, I have not seen that joy since the
beginning of year.

Economically as we start to come out of the shelter in place. Richmond and sunset businesses need a draw, I have
been to the sunset 9th ave corridor, before the wheel was active as my vet is right there and it was dead, just a few
people waiting outside the vet for their pets, stores shuttered restaurants trying to stay open via take out, or delivery.
I have been in the area since the wheel was activated, and truly I have seen a transformation  people walking the
street, looking in stores that are slowly opening and restaurants having outside food service. This is a huge step in a
economic recovery and in the livelihoods of many of these small businesses.

All I have seen on social media has been positive, from beautiful pictures of it at night with some amazing lighting

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Michelle.Taylor@sfgov.org


shots, to seeing the city, from a special view.

This is truly something special, people need this, San Francisco needs this.

Thank you for reading this,

- Nick Belloni



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support Letter for SkyStar Ferris wheel and Holiday Lights in GGP
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 9:54:03 AM
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
 

From: Walter Van Riel <walter_van_riel@att.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 5:28 PM
To: Hyland, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>; Matsuda, Diane (CPC)
<diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC)
<chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan
(CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark
(REC) <recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; CPC-
Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Martha Ehrenfeld <martha@inner-sunset.org>
Subject: Support Letter for SkyStar Ferris wheel and Holiday Lights in GGP
 

 

Dear Commissioners:
 
As a resident of the Inner Sunset, I am strongly in favor of the ferris wheel and holiday
lights coming to Golden Gate Park.  
 
Don’t let the grinches spoil our holiday cheers.  I bet most of them are grumpy old men
always complaining but never doing anything to improve the community.
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Kudos to you for trying to put some cheers into our lives.  We need more, not less, of that.
 You have my full support.
 
Walter Van Riel
 1259 15th av

 
Sent from my iPhone
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sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: SkyStar Observation Wheel in Golden Gate Park
Date: Thursday, October 29, 2020 9:53:52 AM
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
 

From: Stephanie Linder <SLinder@sfbg.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 4:29 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC)
<aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>; Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC)
<richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia
(CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC) <recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo,
RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>
Subject: SkyStar Observation Wheel in Golden Gate Park
 

 

Dear Historic Preservation Commission,
 
I understand that some members of the community have expressed concern about the SkyStar
Observation Wheel in Golden Gate Park and that the commission is taking public comment on the
issue. I am writing to share my enthusiastic support for the Wheel.
 
As Executive Director of San Francisco Botanical Garden, I have the good fortune to work in Golden

Gate Park. And the Garden is proud to be a community partner in the Golden Gate Park 150th
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Anniversary Celebration. Like so many people, we were very disappointed that numerous activities
planned for the anniversary had to be cancelled due to the pandemic. But now, our staff, board,
members, and visitors are excited to see the Wheel operating. Adding this fun activity to Golden
Gate Park is even more special given what a difficult year this has been. With the increased use of
the park during this time, the Wheel provides a new way to enjoy the natural beauty of the park.
 
Moreover, as a resident of the Inner Sunset, I am hopeful that the Wheel will also bring our
neighborhood merchants some much-needed business. I’m lucky that I can see the park and the
Wheel from my living room window. The Wheel is beautiful, especially when lit up at night. For many
years, I have worked in conservation so I understand the need to preserve the peaceful natural areas
of our park but the Music Concourse has long been the site of special events and lively
entertainment. I believe this is an appropriate use of that area of the park and the Wheel will be
greatly appreciated by both residents and visitors. It is also good to see that all the necessary COVID-
19 precautions are being taken to keep riders safe.
 
I purchased tickets to ride the Wheel next week and will surprise my husband for his birthday. I’ve
timed the tickets for sunset so we can enjoy both the views and the lights as they come on.
 
Thank you for your time and service on the commission.
 
Stephanie
 
 
Stephanie Linder
Executive Director
San Francisco Botanical Garden
1199 Ninth Avenue
San Francisco, CA  94122
415-661-1316 x415
slinder@sfbg.org
sfbg.org
 
Help us build a new plant nursery and protect biodiversity – all donations matched through
December 31!
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From: Silva, Christine (CPC)
To: Silva, Christine (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Son, Chanbory (CPC); Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Subject: Thank you
Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 3:54:12 PM

Hi Commissioners,
 
After over 13 years with the Planning Department and one year with the Permit Center Team, I will
be moving on effective Wednesday, November 4. I’m not going far, just next door in fact, accepting
an offer to serve as MTA’s Board of Directors, Board Secretary.
 
I wanted to take a moment to let you know how much I’ve enjoyed my time here. Planning is an
incredible department (I really, truly mean that!) and I feel fortunate to have been a part of it for all
these years. It’s been an absolute pleasure working with you for everything commission related and I
wish you all nothing but the best.
 
Although our time together is ending, I do hope to keep in touch. Starting next week you can reach
me at christine.silva@sfmta.com or through my personal email at christinelamorena@gmail.com.
 
 
With overwhelming gratitude,
Christine
 
Christine Silva
EPR Project Lead
Permit Center Team

 
Principal Planner, Manager
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7504 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person services, but we
are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic
Preservation Commissions are convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate.
Find more information on our services here. 
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
Subject: FW: Support for SkyStar Ferris wheel and holiday lights in GGP
Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 3:49:46 PM
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
 

From: Denise Donaldson <denise.donaldson@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 2:42 PM
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
Cc: Raphael Merriman <raphaelmerriman@gmail.com>; Martha Ehrenfeld <MarMac@aol.com>
Subject: Support for SkyStar Ferris wheel and holiday lights in GGP
 

 

Dear Commissioners:
 
As a resident of the Inner Sunset and parent of 2 children, I am strongly in favor of
the holiday lights coming to Golden Gate Park.  Sunday night at 7:00pm,  I rode the
SkyStar and walked through the music concourse. There was a festive feeling as
people were safely waiting online to take a ride on the SkyStar.  During Covid-19, SF
residents have been using the park in record numbers.  Having a reason to take a
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stroll in the evening with your family as the days get shorter is very important.  I felt
my mood improve last night as I sat on the grass and watched the lights on the wheel
move and the bandstand’s installation lighting glow and change colors.  My children
were in awe of the lights.  This installation is consistent with other world class
installations like the holiday lights at the National Zoo in Washington DC or Gardens
Aglow at the Coastal Maine Botanical Gardens.  Please bring the Whimsical
Wonderland light installation to Golden Gate Park.
 
Thank you,
 
Denise Donaldson
 
1365 6th Avenue, SF, CA 94122



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Taylor, Michelle (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letter of Support for Holiday Lights in Golden Gate Park
Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 3:49:33 PM
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
 

From: Martha Ehrenfeld <mehrenfeld@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 2:32 PM
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
Cc: Ketcham, Dana (REC) <dana.ketcham@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter of Support for Holiday Lights in Golden Gate Park
 

 

Dear Commissioners:
As a resident of the Inner Sunset, I am strongly in favor of the holiday lights coming to
Golden Gate Park.  Last night, at 7:30pm, I walked to the music concourse. There was
a festive feeling as people were safely waiting online to take a ride on the SkyStar. 
During Covid-19, SF residents have been using the park in record numbers.  Having a
reason to take a stroll with your family as the days get shorter is very important.  I felt
my mood improve last night as I sat on the grass and watched the lights on the wheel
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move and the bandstand’s installation lighting glow and change colors.  This
installation is consistent with other world class installations like the holiday lights at
the National Zoo in Washington DC or Gardens Aglow at the Coastal Maine Botanical
Gardens.  Please bring the Whimsical Wonderland light installation to Golden Gate
Park.
 
Thank you,
Martha Ehrenfeld
1379 6th Ave
 
President, Inner Sunset Park Neighbors*
Co-Chair of the Tennis Coalition of SF*
SF Parks Alliance Board Member*
* For identification purposes
 
--
Martha Ehrenfeld
Tennis Coalition of SF
Co-Chair
http://www.tenniscoalitionsf.org
(415) 731-1859 Home office
(415) 297-2623 Cell Phone
 
The Tennis Coalition promotes San Francisco’s advantage for year-round public tennis by
spearheading the renovation of the historic Golden Gate Park Tennis Center and
strengthening San Francisco’s tennis community.
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
Subject: FW: Huge Lighted Ferris Wheel turns GG Park into glaring gaudy grating amusement center
Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 1:13:14 PM
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
 

From: Vicky Hoover <vicky.hoover@sierraclub.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 11:09 AM
To: Commission, Recpark (REC) <recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo, RPD (REC)
<rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors, (BOS)
<board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Preston,
Dean (BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>;
MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS)
<shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS)
<ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary <hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; Fewer, Sandra (BOS)
<sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman (BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>;
Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley,
Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman,
Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>
Subject: Huge Lighted Ferris Wheel turns GG Park into glaring gaudy grating amusement center
 

 

Ladise and gentlemen:
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As a San Francisco resident for more than 35 years who has very often relished the wonders of
Golden Gate Park as a refuge for nature and green open space, I am saddened by this trend of
turning it into a noisy, blaring, lighted amusement park.  The enormous new ferris wheel, so--called
observation wheel, with much-too-bright lights that are apparently to stay on ALL night (oh energy
conservation--alas!) is a monstrosity.  Harsh and obtrusive, its noise and lights are unrelenting
unavoidable intrusions against Nature and against human desires for contemplation and peace., 
 
And it seems to be San Francisco's turning up its nose on Governor Newsom's October 7 mandate
that it is now state policy to work to save 30 percent of our state's lands and coastal waters for
Nature by 20230.
 
State policy, yes, but not San Francisco policy apparently.  This observation wheel pushes San
Francisco into an opposite, incompatible direction. 
 
In Los Angeles, a 30 by 30 resolution has been introduced into their City Council.  Shall San Francisco
retreat to give up any claim to environmental leadership?
 
San Francisco could have used Golden Gate Park as the base for a vibrant 30 by 30  approach
program for our city, if the Rec and Parks Department had not just declared war on Nature by giving
us this anti-nature, anti environmental Huge Observation Wheel in Golden Gate Park.
 
What about efforts to have dark night skies to allow nature critters some night time peace to
recover from day time noise and human invasion?  No longer a concern?
 
What about the people who love to come to Golden Gate Park to enjoy some peace and quiet from
their own noisy, mechanized lives and revel in this supposed opportunity to find solace from Nature
in the City.  COVID 19 makes it more, not less, important to assure people access to some quiet
Nature for comfort.
 
Please do all you can to end this new city unneeded, massive development at the first possible
opportunity.  It is time to give Nature -- and people -- a break.
 
Thank you for your attention,
 
Vicky Hoover
735 Geary St, #501
San Francisco, CA 94109
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
 

From: Chris Duderstadt <cdmd@sfpix.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 10:26 AM
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
Subject: Support for Observation Wheel Lights
 

 

In support of the temporary Observation Wheel on the Music Concourse
and it's lighting. 
 
Firstly, few people understand that Golden Gate Park was modeled after New
York's Central Park to resemble an English Garden.  It was not designed to be a
Natural Area. 90% of the Park in no way reflects what was there originally.  
Public Parks such as Golden Gate Park were created to serve the citizens of San

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


























Francisco--people, not birds and bugs.  As that, it is serving the people of our
city as never before.  
 
Though we wanted a great 150th celebration with 150 activities on that long
forgot weekend, more people are using the park for activities and "social"
distancing than at any time before.  Certainly, birds, bugs, raccoons, and many
other natural and not so natural creatures depend on the Park but the Park is for
our people.  
 
In 2004 William Kostura and I create the Landmark Designation Report used in
the landmarking of the Music Concourse. The Music Concourse was intended
to provide a venue for our people to gather. 
 
The Observation Wheel brings our people to the Concourse with all Covid-19
protocols respected.  It is the third such 'wheel' to grace the space and does it
wonderfully. The first was in 1894 for the Mid-Winter’s Fair. The second was
for the opening of the new Academy of Science, and the third, the current
Observation Wheel. 
 
The lighting of the current “wheel” and of the Music Bandshell are a
wonderful, temporary, addition to our Park.  I strongly urge everyone to visit
the Concourse of an evening to have this marvelous experience.
 
Chris Duderstadt
  
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES EXPANSION OF JOBS PROGRAM TO

STIMULATE LOCAL ECONOMY AND SUPPORT WORKERS AND BUSINESSES
Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 11:45:40 AM
Attachments: 10.27.20 JobsNow Expansion.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 12:22 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES
EXPANSION OF JOBS PROGRAM TO STIMULATE LOCAL ECONOMY AND
SUPPORT WORKERS AND BUSINESSES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 27, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES EXPANSION OF

JOBS PROGRAM TO STIMULATE LOCAL ECONOMY AND
SUPPORT WORKERS AND BUSINESSES

JobsNOW! program grows by over $7 million, will support 3,600 subsidized employment
placements at hundreds of local employers

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the launch of a newly
expanded jobs program to help San Franciscans find employment, support local businesses,
and advance the City’s economic recovery. San Francisco’s JobsNOW! program, operated by
the Human Services Agency (HSA), provides employment and training services to low-
income residents and reimburses employers when they hire program participants for
permanent positions. The program expansion will make it easier for participants to sign up and
increases support for small businesses to reopen.
 
In recognition of the critical need to stimulate job creation for vulnerable workers and support
local businesses to maximize hiring as they reopen, the Economic Recovery Task Force
recommended expanding the JobsNOW! Subsidized Wages Program. At a time when over
200,000 San Franciscans have filed for unemployment and the City’s unemployment rate is
estimated at 8.4%, a robust hiring program is essential to help businesses invest in the
employees they need and create job opportunities for those who badly want to get back to
work. The City has directed nearly $28 million annually in the FY 2020-21 and 2021-22
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
expanded jobs program to help San Franciscans find employment, support local businesses, and 
advance the City’s economic recovery. San Francisco’s JobsNOW! program, operated by the 
Human Services Agency (HSA), provides employment and training services to low-income 
residents and reimburses employers when they hire program participants for permanent 
positions. The program expansion will make it easier for participants to sign up and increases 
support for small businesses to reopen. 
 
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
estimated at 8.4%, a robust hiring program is essential to help businesses invest in the employees 
they need and create job opportunities for those who badly want to get back to work. The City 
has directed nearly $28 million annually in the FY 2020-21 and 2021-22 budget for the program, 
which is a $7.4 million increase from last year and will support 3,600 subsidized employment 
placements at hundreds of local employers. 
 
“We need to get people back to work, and as businesses throughout the City continue the hard 
work of reopening and getting back on their feet, this is a great way to match people looking for 
jobs with businesses that are hiring,” said Mayor Breed. “With this program we’re focused on 
helping low-income residents find a job and get the work experience they need to succeed, and 
supporting businesses who are looking for employees. As we work to recover together, we need 
to make sure we’re reopening and recovering equitably. We need to bring everyone along – 
especially our most vulnerable residents.” 
 
“JobsNOW! has been a trusted partner for businesses and job seekers to turn to since the last 
Great Recession. With San Franciscans in underserved communities continuing to bear greater 
job losses and slower economic recovery, this program is meeting the challenges of this moment 
by offering easier ways to get enrolled and back to work,” said Trent Rhorer, Executive Director 
of the San Francisco Human Services Agency. “Whether looking for new employment or 
reopening a business, we’re helping people come back stronger from this pandemic with 
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additional support to get hired and pay employees. JobsNOW! is a smart way to find work and 
get matched with the right talent.” 
 
“Last week we hit a major milestone getting to the State’s yellow tier. But reopening alone won’t 
translate to recovery,” said Assessor Carmen Chu, Co-Chair of the Economic Recovery Task 
Force. “Many businesses still can’t afford to hire back workers and that’s where JobsNOW! 
comes in. By investing an additional $7.4 million, we seed employment in our economy enabling 
businesses and workers to stabilize and restart with a little less out of pocket.” 
 
The expanded JobsNOW! program is designed to support San Francisco residents who make less 
than 200% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL), which for a single person is $25,520, and for a 
family of four is $52,400. This group includes individuals who are enrolled in public benefits 
such as CalWORKs, CalFresh, Medi-Cal, or cash assistance programs. The program offers 
several tiers of wage reimbursement to meet the specific needs of businesses who are currently 
operating or working towards reopening, and incentivizes placements in jobs that pay more 
sustainable wages.  
 
JobsNOW! reimburses employers $625 to $1,500 a month for six months to help cover the 
wages of employees they hire through the program, depending on the paid wage amount and the 
employer’s ability to offer full or part time work. Deeper subsidies are available to small 
businesses trying to reopen or start a business (100% of the wages reimbursed for the first three 
months, and 50% for the next three months) and to employers who pay $25/hour or more (50% 
wage reimbursement for six months). 
 
The Economic Recovery Task Force recommended that the City make several programmatic 
changes to ensure JobsNOW! serves San Francisco residents and businesses during the City’s 
recovery from COVID-19, including: 
 


• Provide more subsidized job opportunities. 
• Provide job opportunities with career pathways post-subsidized employment. 
• Encourage online application, enrollment, and job opportunities. 
• Lower barriers for small businesses and job seekers to participate. 
• Extend outreach to unemployed people for greater awareness of job opportunities. 
• Focus on reaching communities that are the most vulnerable. 


 
In the expanded JobsNOW! program, HSA implemented the recommended changes in order to 
support the job seekers and businesses most in need. San Francisco has reduced enrollment 
barriers for program participants and increased the amount of wage subsidy support for small 
businesses and businesses paying $25/hour or more. Additionally, unemployment insurance and 
CARES stimulus payments will not count towards a person’s income for purposes of 
determining program eligibility. 
 
Human Services Agency staff will co-locate at the State’s Employment Development 
Department office in San Francisco in order to connect people receiving unemployment 
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insurance benefits with JobsNOW! Services, as well as referrals to public benefits for food and 
health care coverage, and other supports.  
 
“Getting San Franciscans back to work is our priority, and JobsNOW! is an essential tool that 
will get them back on their feet.  This expansion supports our most vulnerable residents, 
connects job-seekers to work opportunities, and provides incentives to businesses so more 
employees can be hired,” said Joaquín Torres, Director of the Office of Economic and 
Workforce Development. “As we reopen our economy, local businesses and workers need access 
to the resources that will help them thrive and this investment in JobsNOW! will create jobs, 
help our low-income workers build career foundations, and support a more resilient workforce as 
we lean into San Francisco’s economic recovery.” 
 
“JobsNOW! will help CinemaSF stay afloat by bridging the financial gap between now and the 
end of the COVID-19 pandemic, and allowing us to retain our fantastic employees so they are 
ready and available when it is time to restart business,” said Adam Bergeron, owner of Balboa 
Theater. 
 
“The San Francisco Chamber of Commerce is proud to partner with the City on JobsNOW! and 
this new expansion will be a great help to businesses that are looking to rehire and reopen,” said 
Rodney Fong, President and CEO, San Francisco Chamber of Commerce. “As businesses 
recover and look to reopen, we’ll work with our network of employers to make sure they’re 
aware of the JobsNOW program and the financial assistance it provides, and encourage them to 
hire local program participants.” 
 
“As the second largest employer in San Francisco, UCSF is committed to building a workforce 
that reflects our community,” said Francesca Vega, UCSF Vice Chancellor for Community and 
Government Relations. “We are thrilled to support the Mayor’s expansion of the JobsNOW! 
program, as UCSF has partnered with JobsNOW! for 10 years to train San Franciscans for 
careers in healthcare.” 
 
JobsNOW! was created in 2009 in response to the Great Recession. Since 2009, the program has 
supported 27,000 job placements and 1,600 businesses have participated. JobsNOW! connects 
participants to both private sector and public sector opportunities. The program funds Public 
Service Training opportunities at City and County of San Francisco agencies, as well as work 
experience opportunities through contracted partners, and private employers. According to data 
from the California Employment Development Department, 59% of program participants were 
employed three years after exiting subsidized employment, and average quarterly earnings 
increased 63% over those three years. 
 
JobsNOW! is an inter-agency collaboration with City agencies that connect with employers and 
job seekers. Participating agencies include the Office of Economic and Workforce Development 
(OEWD), the San Francisco Chamber of Commerce, San Francisco’s Office of Small Business, 
and the State’s Employment Development Department.  
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Eligible participants: 
• San Francisco residents. 
• Authorized to work in the U.S. 
• Receive HSA benefits (CalWORKs, CalFresh, Medi-Cal, or cash assistance) or have 


income below 200% Federal Poverty Level. Unemployment insurance benefits and 
CARES stimulus payments are excluded from the income calculation.  


 
Employer requirements: 


• San Francisco business registration, Franchise Tax Board account, comply with San 
Francisco labor lays, and pay California payroll taxes. 


• Intend to retain the employee once the subsidy period ends. 
• Subsidized wages are consistent with other employees doing the same work. 
• Cannot subsidize an existing employee unless they meet the JobsNOW! program and 


income criteria. 
• No favorable hiring for family members. 


 
For more information about the JobsNOW! program, go to: SFHSA.org/JobsNOW or call 
(877) 562-1669. 
 
 


### 



https://sfhsa.org/jobsnow





budget for the program, which is a $7.4 million increase from last year and will support 3,600
subsidized employment placements at hundreds of local employers.
 
“We need to get people back to work, and as businesses throughout the City continue the hard
work of reopening and getting back on their feet, this is a great way to match people looking
for jobs with businesses that are hiring,” said Mayor Breed. “With this program we’re focused
on helping low-income residents find a job and get the work experience they need to succeed,
and supporting businesses who are looking for employees. As we work to recover together, we
need to make sure we’re reopening and recovering equitably. We need to bring everyone
along – especially our most vulnerable residents.”
 
“JobsNOW! has been a trusted partner for businesses and job seekers to turn to since the last
Great Recession. With San Franciscans in underserved communities continuing to bear greater
job losses and slower economic recovery, this program is meeting the challenges of this
moment by offering easier ways to get enrolled and back to work,” said Trent Rhorer,
Executive Director of the San Francisco Human Services Agency. “Whether looking for new
employment or reopening a business, we’re helping people come back stronger from this
pandemic with additional support to get hired and pay employees. JobsNOW! is a smart way
to find work and get matched with the right talent.”
 
“Last week we hit a major milestone getting to the State’s yellow tier. But reopening alone
won’t translate to recovery,” said Assessor Carmen Chu, Co-Chair of the Economic Recovery
Task Force. “Many businesses still can’t afford to hire back workers and that’s where
JobsNOW! comes in. By investing an additional $7.4 million, we seed employment in our
economy enabling businesses and workers to stabilize and restart with a little less out of
pocket.”
 
The expanded JobsNOW! program is designed to support San Francisco residents who make
less than 200% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL), which for a single person is $25,520, and
for a family of four is $52,400. This group includes individuals who are enrolled in public
benefits such as CalWORKs, CalFresh, Medi-Cal, or cash assistance programs. The program
offers several tiers of wage reimbursement to meet the specific needs of businesses who are
currently operating or working towards reopening, and incentivizes placements in jobs that
pay more sustainable wages.
 
JobsNOW! reimburses employers $625 to $1,500 a month for six months to help cover the
wages of employees they hire through the program, depending on the paid wage amount and
the employer’s ability to offer full or part time work. Deeper subsidies are available to small
businesses trying to reopen or start a business (100% of the wages reimbursed for the first
three months, and 50% for the next three months) and to employers who pay $25/hour or more
(50% wage reimbursement for six months).
 
The Economic Recovery Task Force recommended that the City make several programmatic
changes to ensure JobsNOW! serves San Francisco residents and businesses during the City’s
recovery from COVID-19, including:
 

Provide more subsidized job opportunities.
Provide job opportunities with career pathways post-subsidized employment.
Encourage online application, enrollment, and job opportunities.
Lower barriers for small businesses and job seekers to participate.



Extend outreach to unemployed people for greater awareness of job opportunities.
Focus on reaching communities that are the most vulnerable.

 
In the expanded JobsNOW! program, HSA implemented the recommended changes in order
to support the job seekers and businesses most in need. San Francisco has reduced enrollment
barriers for program participants and increased the amount of wage subsidy support for small
businesses and businesses paying $25/hour or more. Additionally, unemployment insurance
and CARES stimulus payments will not count towards a person’s income for purposes of
determining program eligibility.
 
Human Services Agency staff will co-locate at the State’s Employment Development
Department office in San Francisco in order to connect people receiving unemployment
insurance benefits with JobsNOW! Services, as well as referrals to public benefits for food
and health care coverage, and other supports.
 
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
Workforce Development. “As we reopen our economy, local businesses and workers need
access to the resources that will help them thrive and this investment in JobsNOW! will create
jobs, help our low-income workers build career foundations, and support a more resilient
workforce as we lean into San Francisco’s economic recovery.”
 
“JobsNOW! will help CinemaSF stay afloat by bridging the financial gap between now and
the end of the COVID-19 pandemic, and allowing us to retain our fantastic employees so they
are ready and available when it is time to restart business,” said Adam Bergeron, owner of
Balboa Theater.
 
“The San Francisco Chamber of Commerce is proud to partner with the City on JobsNOW!
and this new expansion will be a great help to businesses that are looking to rehire and
reopen,” said Rodney Fong, President and CEO, San Francisco Chamber of Commerce. “As
businesses recover and look to reopen, we’ll work with our network of employers to make
sure they’re aware of the JobsNOW program and the financial assistance it provides, and
encourage them to hire local program participants.”
 
“As the second largest employer in San Francisco, UCSF is committed to building a
workforce that reflects our community,” said Francesca Vega, UCSF Vice Chancellor for
Community and Government Relations. “We are thrilled to support the Mayor’s expansion of
the JobsNOW! program, as UCSF has partnered with JobsNOW! for 10 years to train San
Franciscans for careers in healthcare.”
 
JobsNOW! was created in 2009 in response to the Great Recession. Since 2009, the program
has supported 27,000 job placements and 1,600 businesses have participated. JobsNOW!
connects participants to both private sector and public sector opportunities. The program funds
Public Service Training opportunities at City and County of San Francisco agencies, as well as
work experience opportunities through contracted partners, and private employers. According
to data from the California Employment Development Department, 59% of program
participants were employed three years after exiting subsidized employment, and average
quarterly earnings increased 63% over those three years.



 
JobsNOW! is an inter-agency collaboration with City agencies that connect with employers
and job seekers. Participating agencies include the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development (OEWD), the San Francisco Chamber of Commerce, San Francisco’s Office of
Small Business, and the State’s Employment Development Department.
 
 
Eligible participants:

San Francisco residents.
Authorized to work in the U.S.
Receive HSA benefits (CalWORKs, CalFresh, Medi-Cal, or cash assistance) or have
income below 200% Federal Poverty Level. Unemployment insurance benefits and
CARES stimulus payments are excluded from the income calculation.

 
Employer requirements:

San Francisco business registration, Franchise Tax Board account, comply with San
Francisco labor lays, and pay California payroll taxes.
Intend to retain the employee once the subsidy period ends.
Subsidized wages are consistent with other employees doing the same work.
Cannot subsidize an existing employee unless they meet the JobsNOW! program and
income criteria.
No favorable hiring for family members.

 
For more information about the JobsNOW! program, go to: SFHSA.org/JobsNOW or call
(877) 562-1669.
 
 

###
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Comments: Observation Wheel lighting
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
 

From: Robert Hall <bilgepump100@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 5:10 PM
To: RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; ecpark.commission@sfgov.org; Mar, Gordon (BOS)
<gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Stefani,
Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Preston, Dean (BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>;
Haney, Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>;
Walton, Shamann (BOS) <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS)
<aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary
<hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC)
<aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>; Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC)
<richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia
(CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Kathy Howard <kathyhoward@earthlink.net>; Jake Sigg
<jakesigg@earthlink.net>; Noreen Weeden <noreen@naturetrip.com>; Eddie Bartley
<eddie@naturetrip.com>; Whitney Grover <wlgrover@gmail.com>
Subject: Comments: Observation Wheel lighting
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Thank you for letting me weigh-in on the artificially lit Observation Wheel. The
structure is massive, blaring and visible from miles away.
 
The city of San Francisco should be known as a forward thinking,
environmentally-friendly city but I wonder if this project was viewed through
the lens of science.  Did the city consult a biologist, entomologist or
ornithologist before erecting this structure?
 
This structure potentially poses harm to wildlife, specifically birds and insects.
Has a plan been developed to mitigate any unintended consequences?
 
Bird collisions are one of the largest threats to the demise of birds after habitat
loss and predation by pet cats. We should be especially concerned about what
these lights are doing to birds during the current migration season.  Well-lit
structures can attract migrating birds and cause them to get disoriented.
 
And what about the impact on insects? Insects are currently in the middle of a
dramatic decline worldwide. Light pollution has been cited as a major
contributor. Skyglow—light from populated areas that scatters through the
atmosphere and can be seen from miles away—reduces many insect species’
ability to orient themselves, find food, avoid predation and
reproduce.  According to an article published in the Annals of Applied Biology ,
many insects are attracted to direct light sources such as street lamps and
stadium lights, where they may be killed on contact by heat, electrocution or
the force of impact; they may also get trapped and exhausted or preyed upon.
Moreover, the study notes that artificial light can impede communication
among insects, diminish their average lifespans, and even
change their physiology.
 
SF Recreation and Parks needs to do better. They have some amazing
marketing ideas but don’t seem to care too much about the ramifications to
wildlife. How could science not guide an entity that is supposed to be a nature
retreat for its citizens? When you add up the additional lighting from the soccer
fields, new tennis courts and art projects like the Observation Wheel and
Entwined Meadow, one has to wonder if, in the blare of the blinding lights, SF

https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdf/10.1111/aab.12440&g=MmE0MDc4NmFkNjFmZTE0ZQ==&h=NzZlYmI5ZDk5MzMxNjM1NGZmNDY4YTAwY2I1M2M4OTJjYTlhYmNmNTMxNzZkOTI0ZWI0MTMyNDAwM2FjZjhhYg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvZmZpY2UzNjVfZW1haWxzX2VtYWlsOmZkYjhjNTVmYzgyNzAyYzVkYzI0MWM3ZjNkNmFhY2Q5OnYx


Rec and Park has lost its way.
 

Bob Hall
1946 Grove St. Apt. 6
San Francisco, CA 94117



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Opposed to the Ferris Wheel / Give back our green park
Date: Wednesday, October 28, 2020 8:35:30 AM
Attachments: image007.png

image008.png
image009.png
image010.png
image011.png
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
 

From: Pam Hemphill <pam.hemphill@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 4:24 PM
To: RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC)
<recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Board of
Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS)
<catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Preston, Dean (BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS)
<matt.haney@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann
(BOS) <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha
(BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary <hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>;
Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley,
Chris (CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman,
Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Fewer,
Sandra (BOS) <sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman (BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>
Subject: Opposed to the Ferris Wheel / Give back our green park
 

 

I am writing after watching years of environmental destruction of Golden Gate Park and the Ferris
Wheel really demonstrates the problem. Please do not light the copycat ferris wheel and do remove
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it soon. The long-time direction of SF Rec and Park has been all about recreation and very little about
park. Golden Gate Park is not an amusement park. We are not downtown London or the Santa
Monica Pier. GGP is important greenery in a dense urban environment, and should be a dark place at
night.
 
We have watched the clearing of the park with the excuse of keeping out the homeless. That did not
work, but the habitat for wildlife has been cleared. Shrubbery and trees have been removed. There
is little if any environmental awareness coming out of SF Rec and Park in this time of climate change.
We need a department that focuses more on park, green places for people to learn about nature,
lush landscapes. Walking in a park is a healthy activity in which many can participate.
 
I have experienced a lot of public participation planning events from Rec and Park. It has been a
huge disappointment. I would call it "let them vent, and we will do what we planned to do anyway".
It starts with several formulated plans, rather than actually gathering ideas from the public. It is "top-
down" governing and is pretty typical of a big problem in SF.
 
Consider a change of leadership for Rec and Park, an embracing of new, creative, climate
appropriate ideas for our important Golden Gate Park! Make it a green space again.
 
Thanks for your attention!
Pam Hemphill MD
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
 

From: Friends of the Music Concourse <musicconcourse@earthlink.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 3:45 PM
To: RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC)
<recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Hyland, Aaron (CPC) <aaron.hyland@sfgov.org>; Matsuda,
Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Foley, Chris
(CPC) <chris.foley@sfgov.org>; Johns, Richard (CPC) <richard.se.johns@sfgov.org>; Pearlman,
Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.pearlman@sfgov.org>; So, Lydia (CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>
Cc: Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors, (BOS)
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
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Feedback on lighted Observation Wheel - Music Concourse, GGP. Friends of the Music
Concourse.
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Friends of the Music Concourse (c) 
Dedicated to the Preservation 


of the Historic Golden Gate Park 


Music Concourse 


 


 


 


October 27, 2020 


 


Historic Preservation Commission 


Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco 


49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103 


Subject:  Lighted Observation Wheel in Music Concourse 


Commission President Aaron Jon Hyland and Commissioners, 


There are always temptations to look at parkland and park facilities and view them as opportunities for 


development or producing income, ignoring that the proposed projects would be detrimental to the 


very parkland that the public needs and values as a park and open space.     


Last January, Friends of the Music Concourse opposed the current lighted observation wheel in the 


Music Concourse.    After visiting the Concourse and viewing the wheel both during the daytime and 


later in the evening, we continue to be firmly opposed to this structure and its lighting in the historic 


Music Concourse.  (Photos of the lighting can be viewed online. 
1
   ) 


We outlined our objections in our previous letter of January 2020 (attached).  To reiterate our 


objections: 


• GGP is historically and currently valued as a landscape park, not an amusement park or a 


carnival.  In fact, Recreation and Parks lists the natural beauty of the Park first in its list of the 


Park's characteristics.  


• The National Register designation of Golden Gate Park describes it as a "green oasis in a sea of 


urbanization."  
2
  It further states that,  "Golden Gate Park was conceived as a naturalistic 


pleasure ground park to provide a sylvan retreat from urban pressures for all citizens, rich and 


poor.” 
3
   


• The 1998 Golden Gate Park Master Plan (Master Plan) describes the intent of designer William 


Hammond Hall to lay out a park that was, for the most part, a wild and natural landscape west 


of Strawberry Hill, and, for the most part, open to human activity in the eastern section.  The  


intent was always to have all activities takes place in a park setting, and to continue to provide a 


landscape park experience for residents.  The Master Plan shows that much development has 


taken place over the years, as more and more built facilities have been added to the Park and 


                                                             
1  Photos of the current lighting can be viewed at:  


https://www.slideshare.net/GoldenGateParkPreservationAlliance/music-concourse-observation-wheel-from-one-


mile-away             


https://www.slideshare.net/GoldenGateParkPreservationAlliance/music-concourse-observation-wheel-photos-in-
golden-gate-park 
2  "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 1.  
3 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 1. 
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more and more landscape has been lost. The current Observation Wheel contributes further to 


this loss of the feeling of being in a landscape park. 


• In the Golden Gate Park Master Plan, lighting is intended to be limited in Golden Gate Park 


overall and to only a few institutions in the Music Concourse specifically.  There is no mention of 


an observation wheel or other carnival-like attractions. 


• The Department of Recreation and Park seems intent on turning San Francisco's premier 


landscape park and vital habitat into an amusement park, by adding 'attractions' and lighting 


throughout the park.   This started with the 150,000 watts of lighting at Beach Chalet and now 


extends to lighting the Conservatory of Flowers and even adding lights and an 'attraction' to 


open meadow. 


• As stated during the hearing at the Historic Preservation Commission, an observation wheel is 


not a historic feature of the Music Concourse. 


o The National Register contains three full pages of lists of Individual Park Resources in 


Golden Gate Park.
4
  The 6-month ferris wheel from the Mid-Winter Exposition is not on 


that list.   


o The City landmarking (#249) does not list a ferris wheel as either contributing or non-


contributing.    


o The original proposal was therefore for a non-contributing element that would be 


located in the Music Concourse longer than even the original ferris wheel. 


• Protecting habitat and biodiversity are part of the Recreation and Open Space Element (ROSE),  


but they are not mentioned in detail in the RPD Certificate of Appropriateness application. 


• Golden Gate Park is already stressed with the number of visitors that enter the Park every year. 


o Even before COVID-19, according to the Department of Recreation and Park website, 


Golden Gate Park had more than 13 million visitors each year.  
5
   The advent of 


sheltering in place and the change of many of the roads in the park to pedestrian/biking 


only have brought new groups of visitors to the Park.  


o Having a large number of visitors brings wear and tear to the parkland and stress to the 


wildlife living in it.   


o It is unfortunate that instead of highlighting and protecting the naturalistic qualities of 


Golden Gate Park, the Department of Recreation and Park has made a choice to 


emphasize introduced, built attractions and  artificial lighting to such an extent that it 


detracts from landscape qualities, compromises habitat, and threatens wildlife. 


Golden Gate Park must be protected.  It is more than a collection of individual attractions.  As stated in 


the National Register,  


"it is important to view Golden Gate Park as a whole. Golden Gate Park was developed over 


many years, but it was conceived as a single creation that we now consider an historic designed 


landscape." 
6
 


 


  


                                                             
4 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, pages 3- 5. 
5 "We’re proud to welcome more than 13 million visitors each year to Golden Gate Park, one of San Francisco’s 


greatest treasures "   Recreation and Park Department website. https://sfrecpark.org/destination/golden-gate-park/  
6 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 2 
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The timeline for feedback on the Observation Wheel is too short. 


We were shocked that the public has only been given one week from the notice of this meeting, to 


respond with concerns.  In addition, at our site visit three days ago, there were no notices of this 


meeting, only a vague sign to contact RPD with "feedback." 


Mitigations are needed 


Friends of the Music Concourse urges the Department of Recreation and Park to do the following to 


mitigate the damage from the introduction of this non-historic structure and its over-bright lighting: 


• All Observation Wheel lighting should be turned off at dusk. 


• Nightime security lighting should be minimal.  The current de Young Tower lighting is a good 


example of a sensitive way to minimally light a park structure at night.  (See footnote 1 for 


photos of the stark contrast between the Wheel and the Tower.) 


• The Observation Wheel should be removed from the Park by early 2021, at the end of the 


Anniversary Celebration, as agreed to by the Department of Recreation and Park. 


Sincerely, 


Katherine Howard 


Katherine Howard, ASLA 


Co-Chair 


Attachment:   Friends of the Music Concourse letter, January 14, 2020 


cc:   San Francisco Board of Supervisors 


 Recreation and Park Commission 


 Recreation and Park Department 
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Friends of the Music Concourse (c) 
Dedicated to the Preservation 


of the Historic Golden Gate Park 


Music Concourse 


 


 


 


January 14, 2020 


 


Historic Preservation Commission 


Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco 


1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103 


 


Subject:  2019-022126COA: 55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive - Proposed Lighted Observation wheel and 


Bandshell in Music Concourse 


 


Commission President Aaron Jon Hyland and Commissioners, 


 


Friends of the Music Concourse was established at the time that a garage was proposed for the Music 


Concourse Bowl in Golden Gate Park [the Park.]  Part of that proposal included cutting down all of the 


pollarded trees in the Music Concourse in order to build the garage under the Bowl.  Fortunately, public 


outrage was aroused at the possible loss of the beloved 100-year-old trees and the other historic 


features.  The trees were saved, the historic design was preserved, and the area was landmarked to 


protect this remarkable historic asset from future degradation.  However, there are always temptations 


to look at parkland and park facilities and view them as opportunities for development or producing  


income, ignoring that the projects proposed might be detrimental to the very parkland that attracts the 


public in the first place. 


Friends of the Music Concourse is very concerned about the current proposal to place a lighted 


observation wheel in the Music Concourse for one year and to light the Music Concourse Bandshell, as 


well as installing 19 searchlights on the roof of the Bandshell.  We will examine the possible impacts to 


both the Concourse and to Golden Gate Park in this letter. 


GGP is historically a landscape park, not an amusement park or a carnival. 


The Recreation and Park website lists the natural beauty of the Park first in its list of the Park's 


characteristics.  


"Golden Gate Park is known primarily for its naturalistic beauty.  From a vast, windswept 


expanse of sand dunes, park engineer William Hammond Hall and master gardener John 


McLaren carved out an oasis–a verdant, horticulturally diverse, and picturesque public space 


where city dwellers can relax and reconnect with the natural world. The rest, as they say, is 


history. "  
1
 


The National Register designation describes it as a "green oasis in a sea of urbanization."  
2
  It further 


states that,  


                                                             
1   Department of Recreation and Park Website, https://sfrecpark.org/destination/golden-gate-park/ 
2  "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 1.  
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"Golden Gate Park was conceived as a naturalistic pleasure ground park to provide a 


sylvan retreat from urban pressures for all citizens, rich and poor.” 
3
   


Over the years, Golden Gate Park has both experienced and resisted intense development. 


The 1998 Golden Gate Park Master Plan (Master Plan) describes the intent of designer William 


Hammond Hall to lay out a park that was, for the most part, a wild and natural landscape west of 


Strawberry Hill, and, for the most part, open to human activity in the eastern section.  However, the 


intent was always to have all activities takes place in a park setting, and to continue to provide a 


landscape park experience for residents.  The Master Plan shows that much development has taken 


place over the years, as more and more built facilities have been added to the Park and more and more 


landscape has been lost.  


"Now in its second century, the park is facing new and growing challenges. Most of these are the 


result of the growth and change of the City around the park. The kind of vision that was required 


to create the park from barren sand dunes is also needed today to preserve and enhance the 


park to ensure that it will continue to serve future generations. This Master Plan for Golden 


Gate Park attempts to provide that vision and lay the groundwork for its preservation and 


enhancement into the next century."  
4
  


In the Department of Recreation and Park's own planning guide, the Golden Gate Park Master Plan, 


lighting is intended to be limited in Golden Gate Park overall and in the Music Concourse specifically. 


Lighting of Golden Gate Park, including the Music Concourse, is intended to be primarily for "use and 


safety considerations."  
5
     It is not intended to increase night use.  This map from the Golden Gate Park 


Master Plan (1998) shows the only areas that may be lighted under the Recreation and Park 


Department's own guidelines.  In the Music Concourse area specifically, the de Young Museum and the 


California Academy of Sciences are the only areas that are designated as "night use areas." The rest of 


the Music Concourse and the Bandshell are not even designated as "potential night use areas." 
6
 


Lighting Plan, GGPMP 
7
 


 


                                                             
3 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 
Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 1. 
4  Introduction, "Golden Gate Park Master Plan," 1998.  Page 1-1. 
5  Lighting Plan, Golden Gate Park Master Plan, 1998.  Page 9-5. 
6  Lighting Plan, Golden Gate Park Master Plan, 1998.  Page 9-5. 
7  Lighting Plan, Golden Gate Park Master Plan, 1998.  Page 9-5. 
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The cumulative impact of a lighted observation wheel and adding extensive lighting and spotlights to the 


Bandshell is being ignored by submitting separate Certificates of Appropriateness. 


The Department of Recreation and Park has decided to present the COA for the Observation wheel and 


the one for the Bandshell lighting to the HPC in two separate meetings.  The artificial nighttime lighting 


created by these two projects will have a cumulative impact on the Music Concourse and on Golden 


Gate Park, and those impacts should be considered together in that context. 


What will be the extent of lighting the Bandshell?  How will events here add to the impact on the Park 


from large concerts and other events? 


Will there be a large number of lighted concerts in the Bandshell in the evenings?  How does this 


correlate with the Recreation and Park's previously stated determination to limit large events in Golden 


Gate Park over a year's time?  Will the Department be eliminating or cutting back on such events as 


Hardly Strictly Bluegrass or the Outside Lands Festival?   The many festivals bring enormous crowds into 


the parkland and impact it not only through the crowds that trample the parkland but also through the 


all-night lighting that is installed for protection of equipment and security of the performance areas. 


Lighted observation wheel and intense lighting for Bandshell are not appropriate for the Music 


Concourse or for Golden Gate Park 


The introduction of the lighted observation wheel and the intense lighting proposed for the Bandshell 


will change the Music Concourse from the classic outdoor performance space it was established to be 


when laid out in 1895, into a space with more of a carnival atmosphere.  Golden Gate Park as a whole 


was conceived as a naturalistic pleasure ground park to provide a sylvan retreat from urban pressures 


for all citizens, rich and poor.  The parkland has evolved into a space in which wildlife has also found a 


refuge and a home.  With increased development, there is a point at which both wildlife habitat and the 


sense of parkland will be lost.  All that will be left if a series of amusements with a few trees interspersed 


in between, to remind us that this was once a great landscape park. 


An observation wheel is not a historic feature of the Music Concourse 


The Midwinter Fair ferris wheel was in the Park for less than a year.  It was removed at the end of the 


Fair, along with the majority of elements that had been imposed on the Park for the Midwinter Fair, 


over the objections of many.  
8
   


The National Register contains three full pages of lists of Individual Park Resources in Golden Gate Park.
9
  


The ferris wheel from the Mid-Winter Exposition is not on that list.   


The City landmarking (249) does not list a ferris wheel as either contributing or non-contributing.    


The current proposal is therefore for a non-contributing element that will be located in the Music 


Concourse longer than even the original ferris wheel. 


Protecting habitat and biodiversity are part of the Recreation and Open Space Element (ROSE)  but are 


not mentioned in detail the COA application  


The COA does not quote all of Objective 4 from the ROSE.  Policy statements about the importance of 


protecting biodiversity and wildlife are left out of the COA: 


"OBJECTIVE 4 


PROTECT AND ENHANCE THE BIODIVERSITY, HABITAT VALUE, AND ECOLOGICAL INTEGRITY OF 


OPEN SPACES AND ENCOURAGE SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES IN THE DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT 


OF OUR OPEN SPACE SYSTEM 


San Francisco is a heavily urbanized city, which nonetheless has a rich variety of plant and 


animal communities. Among these are coastal scrub, grassland, oak woodlands, marsh, and 


                                                             
8  Clary, Raymond H.  "The Making of Golden Gate Park, 1865-1906."  Page 112 - 113. 
9 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, pages 3- 5. 
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stream-side habitats and their associated wildlife. Some of these habitats hold species found 


nowhere outside of the Bay Area. The City also has significant landscaped areas, such as conifer 


plantings in Golden Gate Park. By providing food and shelter for migratory and resident birds, 


butterflies, and insects they too play a major role in supporting San Francisco’s biodiversity. 


Biodiversity includes the variety of living organisms, the genetic differences among them, and 


the communities and ecosystems in which they occur. Maintaining biodiversity requires genetic 


diversity, species diversity, and habitat diversity. San Francisco can be a leader in creating new 


and more sustainable open spaces by ensuring that all open spaces, including new and 


renovated park spaces, are developed in a way that enhances and works with local 


biodiversity. " 


" POLICY 4.1 


Preserve, protect and restore local biodiversity. 


" . . .The City should employ appropriate management practices to maintain a healthy and 


resilient ecosystem which preserves and protects plant and wildlife habitat . . ."  
10


 


The ROSE is very specific about protecting wildlife from artificial lighting. This information is also left out 


of the COA. 


POLICY 4.3 


Integrate the protection and restoration of local biodiversity into open space construction, 


renovation, management and maintenance. 


Lighting. Park lighting should be environmentally efficient and provide safety and security to 


park users, while being as limited as possible in order to protect wildlife in natural areas from 


the impacts of light pollution.  
11


 


Environmental organizations have submitted letters of concern about these projects  


Many organizations have written to your commission about the negative impact of the proposed 


projects on the wildlife and biodiversity present in - and migrating over - Golden Gate Park and the 


Music Concourse.  Please refer to the attached letters from the Sierra Club, Golden Gate Audubon 


Society, Raptors Are The Solution, and Coyote Yipps.  Comments include: 


" . . .we believe that this installation will have significant negative impacts on migratory and 


nesting birds as well as other wildlife. Due to these potential impacts, as well as potential 


impacts to “dark skies”, we ask that a full Environmental Impact Report (EIR) be prepared before 


any permit or other approval is considered."  Sierra Club, 1-7-20. 


" . . .The proposed 150’ structure in the midst of the park poses a threat to birds flying through 


the park and the artificial light poses an additional risk. . . ."  Golden Gate Audubon Society, 1-3-


20. 


" . . . We believe the proposed structure will pose a threat to raptors and other birds flying 


through the park: The glass and artificial light could very possibly confuse and disorient them, 


resulting in collisions and mortality." Raptors Are The Solution, 1-7-20 


" . . . Not only will this project — the construction and even more so, the final project — be 


disruptive to wildlife in the area through bright lights and noise, but it’s also going in the 


opposite direction to what most people want for our park. . . ."  Coyote Yipps. 


This proposal has already been heard and votetd on at the Recreation and Park Commission - before 


bringing it to the Historic Preservation Commission  
12


 


                                                             
10  https://generalplan.sfplanning.org/Recreation_OpenSpace_Element_ADOPTED.pdf 
11  https://generalplan.sfplanning.org/Recreation_OpenSpace_Element_ADOPTED.pdf 
12  SF Recreation and Park Commission, December 19, 2019, www.sfgovtv.org, video on demand. 
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The Recreation and Park Commission approved this project on December 19th, 2019, before the HPC's 


hearing.  This has happened with other projects.  The preservation commissioners have asked in the 


past, and RPC has agreed, that the HPC should be notified and given the opportunity to hear, evaluate, 


and approve or propose mitigations before the issues are presented to the RPC.    


Therefore, if the RPC has agreed to a contract without the HPC's approval, that is their responsibility and 


should not affect your decision about this project. 


Golden Gate Park is already stressed with the number of visitors that enter the Park every year. 


According to the Department of Recreation and Park website, Golden Gate Park has more than 13 


million visitors each year.  
13


   Having a large number of visitors brings wear and tear to the parkland and 


stress to the wildlife living in it.  It is unfortunate that a choice is being made to highlight the park by 


adding artificial lighting to such an extent that it detracts from the landscape qualities, compromises 


habitat, and threatens wildlife. 


What reassurance does the public have that all of the structures and lighting would be removed 


completely at the end of the celebration? 


Not everyone feels the same way about protecting parkland, as both gardener John McLaren and 


designer William Hammond Hall observed.  What reassurance can we have that ALL of the structures 


and ALL of the lighting will be completely removed immediately after the end of the celebration, and 


that the Park and Bandshell will not be damaged in the process of either set-up or breakdown of the 


equipment. 


" It's a perfectly horrible way to ruin the natural beauty which is the essence of Golden Gate Park   ." 


In conclusion, I will quote from the second eloquent letter sent by Coyote Yipps,  


"Again, I am asking you to OPPOSE this plan. It's a perfectly horrible way to ruin the natural 


beauty which is the essence of Golden Gate Park with its trees, vegetation, old carved stone 


structures, and all the wonderful wildlife there. In fact, it will interfere with wildlife and actually 


cause stress. Our "wildness" areas are a valuable but vanishing commodity in our modern world 


where those who want to make a buck are eschewing nature for lights, noise, artificiality and 


anything else that will bring in money, which is then turned around to pave over more of 


paradise. Our youth are not going to value nature if there is less and less of it for them to fall in 


love with. " 
14


 


Golden Gate Park is more than a collection of individual attractions.  As stated in the National Register,  


"it is important to view Golden Gate Park as a whole. Golden Gate Park was developed over 


many years, but it was conceived as a single creation that we now consider an historic designed 


landscape." 
15


 


Friends of the Music Concourse urges you to deny the Certificate of Appropriateness for both the 


Observation Wheel and the lighting of the Bandshell. 


Sincerely, 


Katherine Howard 


Katherine Howard, ASLA 


Co-Chair 


                                                             
13 "We’re proud to welcome more than 13 million visitors each year to Golden Gate Park, one of San Francisco’s 


greatest treasures "   Recreation and Park Department website. https://sfrecpark.org/destination/golden-gate-park/  
14 Kessler, Janet.  Coyote Yipps, bandshell and spotlights, 1-12-20. 
15 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 2 
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Friends of the Music Concourse (c)

Dedicated to the Preservation
of the Historic Golden Gate Park
Music Concourse

 
 
 
 

Commissioners,

Attached please find our letter outlining our concerns with the lighted Observation Wheel in the
Music Concourse, Golden Gate Park, as well as the letter that we submitted last year on this project.

In our letter, we have requested the following mitigations for this installation:
 

All Observation Wheel lighting should be turned off at dusk.
Night time security lighting should be minimal. The current de Young Tower lighting is a good

example of a sensitive way to minimally light a park structure at night. (See footnote 1 in the
letter for
photos of the stark contrast between the Wheel and the Tower.)

The Observation Wheel should be removed from the Park by early 2021, at the end of the
Anniversary Celebration, as agreed to by the Department of Recreation and Park.

Thank you for your consideration.

Katherine Howard

Co-Chair

 

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Sierra Club - Oppose lighting on Observation Wheel in Music Concourse in Golden Gate Park
Date: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 2:26:47 PM
Attachments: Observation Wheel photos - from one mile away.pdf

Observation Wheel photos - in the Music Concourse.pdf
2020_10_27 Sierra Club objections to Observation Wheel and lighting, Music Concourse, GGP 2.pdf
Music Concourse Ferris Wheel - Sierra Club, 1-7-20.pdf
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
 

From: Kathy Howard <kathyhoward@earthlink.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 1:44 PM
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
(CPC) <lydia.so@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors,
(BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>;
Preston, Dean (BOS) <dean.preston@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>;
MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS)
<shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS)
<ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary <hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; Fewer, Sandra (BOS)
<sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman (BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark
(REC) <recpark.commission@sfgov.org>; RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>
Cc: 'Arthur Feinstein' <arthurfeinstein@earthlink.net>
Subject: Sierra Club - Oppose lighting on Observation Wheel in Music Concourse in Golden Gate Park
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Observation Wheel, Golden Gate Park - from one mile away. 


All photos -- 10-25-2020 


 The bright white object in the center of the photo is the Observation Wheel in Golden Gate Park, as seen from UCSF on Parnassus Avenue.   


Note the dome of light reflecting from the high cloud cover.    


  


  







Observation Wheel, Golden Gate Park - from one mile away. 


All photos -- 10-25-2020 


 


 


Close up of the Observation Wheel seen from UCSF, Parnassus.  Barely discernible on the left of the photo is the deYoung Tower with interior 


night lighting.   


  


 


 








The Observaton Wheel as seen within the Music Concourse 


 


All photos - 10-24-2020 


 


The deYoung Museum Tower is in the background, to the right. 


  







The Observaton Wheel as seen within the Music Concourse 


 


All photos - 10-24-2020 


The lights on the spokes and circle change color constantly.  Intensely bright white light is an important 


component of many of the designs. 


 


 


 







The Observaton Wheel as seen within the Music Concourse 


 


All photos - 10-24-2020 


The outside lights on the booths and much of the lighting for the wheel is bright white. 
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


Subject:  55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive - Installed and running lighted Observation Wheel in Music 


Concourse, Golden Gate Park 


Commission President Aaron Jon Hyland, 


The Sierra Club had concerns about the proposed lighted Observation Wheel in the Music Concourse. 


because it was installed without an adequate environmental review (see attached letter, January 7, 


2020.)  Now that we see the Observation Wheel in place with its intensely bright and completely 


unshielded lighting, we wish to state even more strongly our concerns with this potentially 


environmentally damaging structure.   


The Observation Wheel was originally proposed by the Department of Recreation and Park as an 


attraction that would bring people into Golden Gate Park.  However, COVID-19 has shown us that the 


people of San Francisco treasure and enjoy their parks and open space as parkland.  The use of our parks 


now is higher than it has ever been; many people go to enjoy nature in them.  The Observation Wheel is 


not natural by any stretch of the imagination and does not enhance the experience of parkland. 


Furthermore, the lighted Observation Wheel may have negative impacts on wildlife, in particular on 


birds.  The bands of exterior booth lights are all extremely bright, white LED's.  Many of the patterns on 


the wheel and spokes include white as part of their design.  The wheel is so bright that it can be seen 


more than a mile away and is brighter than any other lighted object in the western part of San Francisco.  


(See attached exhibits illustrating the jarring brightness of this object.) 


The Sierra Club supports Dark Skies, protection of migrating birds, and a safe, dark nighttime habitat for 


other wildlife.  Wildlife needs darkness.  Golden Gate Park is one of the few places in San Francisco 


where wildlife can find refuge at night; in addition, the Park is part of the western flyway for migrating 


birds.  We are now in the middle of bird migration season.  And yet the Department of Recreation and 


Park has chosen to light the center of the Park with extremely bright lights.  In fact, there is a trend now 


to light all of Golden Gate Park -- from the Beach Chalet Fields with 150,000 watts of stadium lights to 


the Conservatory of Flowers light show and a new lighting project in a meadow.  It is unfortunate that 


the Department of Recreation and Park does not follow either its own policies that forbid this kind of 


extensive lighting, such as the Golden Gate Park Master Plan, or the City's Recreation and Open Space 


Element, which supports maintaining safe and beneficial habitats for wildlife. 







 


 


Page 2 of 2 


 
590 Texas Street, San Francisco, CA 94107                Tel. (415) 680-0643                    arthurfeinstein at earthlink.net 


 


 


The additional use of the park by large numbers of people and the increased artificial lighting all have a 


negative impact on this valuable habitat. 


We ask that you require the exterior lights to be turned off after dusk and to also honor the agreement 


to remove the Observation Wheel in early 2021. 


Thank you for your consideration. 


 Sincerely, 


Arthur Feinstein 


Arthur Feinstein 


 


Member, Sierra Club California Executive Committee 


Chair, Sierra Club California Conservation Committee 


Board Member, SF Bay Chapter Executive Committee 


 


cc:   San Francisco Board of Supervisors 


 Recreation and Park Commission 


 Recreation and Park Department 


 


 


Attachments:   Sierra Club letter of January 7, 2020 


  Observation Wheel photos - from one mile away 


  Observation Wheel photos - in the Music Concourse 
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Serving Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin and San Francisco counties 
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January 7, 2020 


Historic Preservation Commission 


Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco 


1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103 


 


Subject:  2019-022126COA: 55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive - Proposed Lighted Ferris Wheel and 


Bandshell in Music Concourse 


 


Commission President Aaron Jon Hyland, 


The Sierra Club has recently learned of the planned installation of a lighted ferris wheel in the 


Music Concourse in Golden Gate Park [the Park] for the 150th Golden Gate Park Anniversary 


celebration.  Although we appreciate the efforts to bring attention and people into the Park on this 


occasion, we believe that this installation will have significant negative impacts on migratory and 


nesting birds as well as other wildlife. Due to these potential impacts, as well as potential impacts 


to “dark skies”, we ask that a full Environmental Impact Report (EIR) be prepared before any permit 


or other approval is considered. 


Golden Gate Park [the Park] is a world-renowned park, known primarily for its naturalistic beauty.  


The Historic Register designation describes it as a "green oasis in a sea of urbanization."  
1
  In fact, 


"Golden Gate Park was conceived as a naturalistic pleasure ground park to provide a sylvan retreat 


from urban pressures for all citizens, rich and poor.” 
2
  As a result of the vision of the founders of 


Golden Gate Park and of William Hammond Hall's curvilinear, naturalistic design, millions of people 


enjoy the Park every year as a landscape.  But Golden Gate Park is more than a collection of trees 


and meadows; it is full of life.  The Park has become a haven for wildlife.  Hundreds of species of 


birds have been identified in the park, as well as coyotes, raccoons, skunks, opossum, bats, and 


even a mountain lion.  Surrounded as they are by a bustling, urban environment, these species all 


                                                   
1
 "National Register of Historic Places," OMB No. 1024-0018, United State Department of the Interior, National 


Park Service, Oct. 15, 2004 certification.  Section 7, page 1. 


2
 Ibid.  
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share the need for night time darkness and periods of quiet in order not only to survive but also to 


thrive.    


Wildlife in our modern times is subject to increasing stress and loss of habitat.  Recently new 


buildings, paving, and artificial turf have been added to the Park; these are obvious causes of loss 


of habitat.  What many people may not be aware of is that adding more people over extended 


hours, noise, bright lights, and artificial night lighting also has a negative impact on habitat. 


Recently, more and more artificial light has been added to Golden Gate Park.  The habitat at the 


western end of the Park has been seriously compromised by the 150,000 watts of stadium lighting 


at the Beach Chalet artificial turf soccer fields.  In the eastern end of the Park, the Park is 


experiencing a cumulative impact of built projects that are adding lighting.  The Conservatory of 


Flowers now includes an evening light show, the tennis courts are being renovated with new 


lighting on both courts and paths, and, in addition to the ferris wheel, part of the current proposal 


is to add additional lighting to the Bandshell.   


While the eastern section of the Park is designated as open to lighting in the Golden Gate Park 


Master Plan, the authors of the Master Plan did not envision anything more than adequate lighting 


for safety, ingress and egress.  In the section on Park Lighting, the Plan states, “Pedestrian scaled 


replacement lighting is proposed for selected paths and roads to provide a minimum safety 


"beacon" lighting system.  . . . Different areas of the park will be lighted to different levels based on 


amount of use and safety considerations. Lighting is for safety purposes and is not intended to 


increase night use.  "  
3
 [Emphasis added.] 


The proposed lighted ferris wheel will be over 140 ft. tall, shining through the surrounding trees 


and lighting the area.  It is planned to be lighted into the evening for an entire year, through the 


avian nesting and migration seasons.  The lights and spinning could be confusing to birds, 


contributing to bird strikes, injury and death.  Artificial light near nests fosters predation of song 


birds by other species.  The lights will be reflected in the sky, especially during the common foggy 


evenings in this section of San Francisco, further adding to the light around the Music Concourse 


area.  The proposed generator will add noise to the area.  Noise also has negative impacts on 


migratory and nesting birds and other wildlife. We could find no evidence of any environmental 


analysis of this project, despite the fact that much of this nighttime, lighted activity, will take place 


during the migration and nesting seasons. 


Lighting poles for the Beach Chalet project were lowered by the Department of Recreation and 


Park from 90 feet to 60 feet, due to the Department feeling that 90 feet was too tall for lighting.  


                                                   
3
 Golden Gate Park Master Plan," 1998.  Page 9-5.  https://sfrecpark.org/about/publications/golden-gate-park-


master-plan/ 
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The ferris wheel is going to have lights up to 143 feet above grade.   


There is no information on the intensity of the lights, if they meet Dark Sky standards, or if there is 


any type of shielding..  In addition, the wheel will be turning.  Will the rotating lights be even more 


confusing to birds, as they try to navigate?   Very bright security lights will be lighted from 10:00 


p.m. to dawn, further adding to the impact of this lighted structure.  


Although surrounded by buildings, the Music Concourse is ideally located for wildlife populations to 


venture forth, to forage and explore both during the day and at night.  The nearby Arboretum with 


its abundance of native plants and lakes and streams, is a haven for wildlife.  Situated less than 


1,200 feet away from the proposed ferris wheel, enthusiastic bird watchers have recorded over 170 


species in that small area in just the last 10 years.  Within the Music Concourse itself, 90 species 


have been recorded.  And 104 species have been identified on the living roof of the California 


Academy of Sciences. 
4
 


In 2013, Professors Travis Longcore and Catherine Rich submitted an analysis of the "Effects of 


Night Lighting from Proposed Beach Chalet Athletic Fields Renovation, San Francisco, California" as 


part of the CEQA review for that project.  It is probable that the sports lighting for the Beach Chalet 


fields is much more intense than those proposed for the ferris wheel, although without 


documentation from a lighting expert it is difficult to know the exact measurements.  Nevertheless, 


information from Professor Longcore's analysis is useful in demonstrating some of the impacts that 


lighting has for the Music Concourse project, as that paper was written specifically for Golden Gate 


Park. 


For example, in "Section 2.2, Light scattering by aerosols," Longcore states, “Light is scattered by 


aerosols in the air.  These can be dust, pollen, or droplets of water. . . ..Anyone who knows the 


climate of San Francisco is aware of a line that roughly demarcates the foggy western half of the 


city from the less foggy eastern half.  San Francisco as a whole has over 100 days of fog per year, 


while the western portion, especially the project site, will have more than 100 foggy nights per year 


(http://www.currentresults.com/Weather/US/cloud-fog-city-annual.php).  Fog is extremely efficient 


at reflecting light and the rule of thumb is that it will increase the light reflected from an area by 


10–20 times (see attached comments from H. Spoelstra). "  
5
 


Longcore's analysis points out other elements that need to be studied before this project is 


approved.   Adding artificial light impacts how active wildlife is, how they forage or roost, and even 


singing patterns for birds.  "Even if illumination is not appreciably increased, merely seeing the light 


                                                   
4
 ebird, bird count figures, https://ebird.org/hotspots?hs=L1085740&yr=last10&m= 


5
 Longcore, Travis and Rich, Catherine, "Effects of Night Lighting from Proposed Beach Chalet Athletic Fields 


Renovation, San Francisco, California," page 3.  Copy available upon request. 
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from the project can influence animal behavior."  
6
 


Longcore also points out that a curfew on lights "does not eliminate impacts."  For example, "one 


species may forage at dusk, another right after dusk, and another in the dark of night . . .   In 


addition,". . . increased illumination, even on a temporary basis, reduces the time available for 


critical behaviors.  . . .  If artificial lighting eliminates a significant period of potential breeding time 


for a species, the long-term consequences will be negative. " 
7
   


In addition, the very bright security lights pictured will be lighted from 10:00 p.m. to dawn, so there 


will be no break in the lighting in this area.  We have seen this happen already with the many 


concerts that take place in Golden Gar Park.  At that time, additional lights are brought in that 


disproportionately lights up the roadways and the concert equipment.  These lights are often 


lighted for weeks at a time, further adding to the light pollution in the Park. 


We were unable to find, either on the Planning Department permits website or as part of the 


documentation for the HPC hearing, any information on any environmental assessment of the 


impact of the cumulative lights and the new structure on dark skies, on wildlife and especially on 


birds.   


With all of the lighting both proposed and already installed in Golden Gate Park, it is perhaps time 


to do a full analysis of the "legitimate depictions of the conditions during fog, low cloud cover, and 


clear sky conditions," 
8
 as Professor Longcore recommended for the Beach Chalet fields, and which 


was not performed for that project. 


In addition to the above concerns, we were surprised that a generator will be used to power the 


ferris wheel.  Sierra Club and the City of San Francisco are moving away from fossil fuels, due to the 


greenhouse gases produced and the resultant contribution to poor air quality.  In addition to the 


environmental harm and noise that it causes, a diesel generator that is active for long periods of 


time sends the wrong message to the public that will be gathering to celebrate Golden Gate Park. 


Golden Gate Park was created for people to enjoy the nature experience that is provides.  Birds and 


other wildlife have always been a part of the public's enjoyment for as long as the park has been in 


existence and are as much a part of the historic experience as any of the built features.  With the 


stresses placed on the natural world by increasing population, resource exploitation, and climate 


change, and the spiraling rate of extinctions caused by these factors, preservation of parkland and 


healthy habitats that provide for the survival and flourishing of wildlife should be paramount. 


                                                   
6
 Op cit, Longcore, Travis and Rich, Catherine, page 16.  . 


7
 Ibid, page 16.   


8
 Ibid, page 6.  
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For all these reasons, we believe that a full Environmental Impact Report should be prepared that 


addresses  the impacts of the project on the various species of wildlife that live in or fly over the 


Park, before this project proceeds.  Issues to be considered include project redesign such a having 


the ferris wheel lighted only during times outside bird migration and nesting seasons and other 


mitigations to reduce impacts to other wildlife species.  Also, alternative sources of electric power, 


generated with clean energy, should be identified. 


Thank you for your consideration. 


Sincerely, 


Arthur Feinstein 
Arthur Feinstein 


 


cc: Michelle Taylor, Preservation Planner 


 Planning Commission  


 Recreation and Park Commission 


 Supervisor Sandra Fewer 


 Supervisor Gordon Mar 


 Supervisor Aaron Peskin 


 Supervisor Dean Preston 


 Clerk of the Board 


 































 

I am forwarding the attached and below letters on behalf of the Sierra Club.

K. Howard

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

San Francisco Group
Serving San Francisco County                          

 

 

October 27, 2020

Historic Preservation Commission
Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco
49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Subject:  55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive - Installed and running lighted Observation Wheel in Music
Concourse, Golden Gate Park

Commission President Aaron Jon Hyland,

The Sierra Club had concerns about the proposed lighted Observation Wheel in the Music
Concourse. because it was installed without an adequate environmental review (see attached letter,
January 7, 2020.)  Now that we see the Observation Wheel in place with its intensely bright and
completely unshielded lighting, we wish to state even more strongly our concerns with this
potentially environmentally damaging structure. 

The Observation Wheel was originally proposed by the Department of Recreation and Park as an
attraction that would bring people into Golden Gate Park.  However, COVID-19 has shown us that
the people of San Francisco treasure and enjoy their parks and open space as parkland.  The use of
our parks now is higher than it has ever been; many people go to enjoy nature in them.  The
Observation Wheel is not natural by any stretch of the imagination and does not enhance the
experience of parkland.

Furthermore, the lighted Observation Wheel may have negative impacts on wildlife, in particular on
birds.  The bands of exterior booth lights are all extremely bright, white LED's.  Many of the patterns
on the wheel and spokes include white as part of their design.  The wheel is so bright that it can be
seen more than a mile away and is brighter than any other lighted object in the western part of San
Francisco.  (See attached exhibits illustrating the jarring brightness of this object.)

The Sierra Club supports Dark Skies, protection of migrating birds, and a safe, dark nighttime habitat
for other wildlife.  Wildlife needs darkness.  Golden Gate Park is one of the few places in San
Francisco where wildlife can find refuge at night; in addition, the Park is part of the western flyway
for migrating birds.  We are now in the middle of bird migration season.  And yet the Department of
Recreation and Park has chosen to light the center of the Park with extremely bright lights.  In fact,
there is a trend now to light all of Golden Gate Park -- from the Beach Chalet Fields with 150,000
watts of stadium lights to the Conservatory of Flowers light show and a new lighting project in a
meadow.  It is unfortunate that the Department of Recreation and Park does not follow either its
own policies that forbid this kind of extensive lighting, such as the Golden Gate Park Master Plan, or



the City's Recreation and Open Space Element, which supports maintaining safe and beneficial
habitats for wildlife.

The additional use of the park by large numbers of people and the increased artificial lighting all
have a negative impact on this valuable habitat.

We ask that you require the exterior lights to be turned off after dusk and to also honor the
agreement to remove the Observation Wheel in early 2021.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Arthur Feinstein
Arthur Feinstein

 

Member, Sierra Club California Executive Committee

Chair, Sierra Club California Conservation Committee

Board Member, SF Bay Chapter Executive Committee

 

cc:          San Francisco Board of Supervisors

               Recreation and Park Commission

               Recreation and Park Department

 

 

Attachments:     Sierra Club letter of January 7, 2020

                              Observation Wheel photos - from one mile away

                              Observation Wheel photos - in the Music Concourse

 

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Observation Wheel lighting and animal safety
Date: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 2:26:29 PM
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
 

From: Lance Carnes <lacarnes@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 9:41 AM
Cc: RPDInfo, RPD (REC) <rpdinfo@sfgov.org>; Commission, Recpark (REC)
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
Subject: Observation Wheel lighting and animal safety
 

 

Dear Decision makers and City government officials,
 

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


























Please consider reducing the light from this project especially after dark and during times of bird
migration.
 
From a January 3. 2019 letter from the Golden Gate Audubon Society (GGAS):
 

For bird safety, at the very least we recommend that the observation wheel not be lit during the
spring and fall bird migration. The spring migration is February 15 through May 30 and the fall
migration is August 15 through November 30. This is also an opportunity to share the message
about Lights Out for Birds during Migration with the public.

 
Nighttime light pollution is something San Franciscans just do not tolerate, especially in this peaceful
open space park.
 
Sincerely,
Lance Carnes
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GROUNDBREAKING OF AFFORDABLE

HOUSING FOR FAMILIES IN THE MISSION
Date: Monday, October 26, 2020 1:37:56 PM
Attachments: 10.23.20 681 Florida Groundbreaking.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Friday, October 23, 2020 11:04 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GROUNDBREAKING OF
AFFORDABLE HOUSING FOR FAMILIES IN THE MISSION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, October 23, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES GROUNDBREAKING

OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING FOR FAMILIES IN THE
MISSION

681 Florida Street will provide housing for 130 families, including formerly homeless
households

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the groundbreaking of a
100% affordable housing project in the Mission at Casa Adelante – 681 Florida Street. Once
complete, the building will provide 130 new homes, of which 30% are set aside as Permanent
Supportive Housing for formerly homeless households. Carnaval San Francisco will occupy
the ground floor of the development once construction is finished, creating a new arts hub for
the surrounding neighborhood.
 
The housing development at 681 Florida advances the City’s strategy for economic recovery,
which includes stimulating new job creation and investing in infrastructure that ensures
San Francisco’s post-COVID economy emerges more equitable and resilient than before. The
development of 130 new affordable homes, including 39 units of Permanent Supportive
Housing, makes progress on the Economic Recovery Task Force’s recommendations to invest
in housing and meet the needs of San Francisco’s most vulnerable residents. Lastly, including
a new arts hub with Carnaval San Francisco on the ground floor of the development illustrates

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
Friday, October 23, 2020 
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


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the groundbreaking of a 100% 
affordable housing project in the Mission at Casa Adelante – 681 Florida Street. Once complete, 
the building will provide 130 new homes, of which 30% are set aside as Permanent Supportive 
Housing for formerly homeless households. Carnaval San Francisco will occupy the ground floor 
of the development once construction is finished, creating a new arts hub for the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
 
The housing development at 681 Florida advances the City’s strategy for economic recovery, 
which includes stimulating new job creation and investing in infrastructure that ensures 
San Francisco’s post-COVID economy emerges more equitable and resilient than before. The 
development of 130 new affordable homes, including 39 units of Permanent Supportive Housing, 
makes progress on the Economic Recovery Task Force’s recommendations to invest in housing 
and meet the needs of San Francisco’s most vulnerable residents. Lastly, including a new arts 
hub with Carnaval San Francisco on the ground floor of the development illustrates the City’s 
efforts to activate and draw upon San Francisco’s unique neighborhood and cultural assets, 
which was another key policy recommendation from the Task Force. 
 
“Our economic recovery as a city depends on creating good paying jobs, making sure people can 
afford to stay in San Francisco, and supporting our vibrant arts community. This project helps us 
make progress on all fronts,” said Mayor Breed. “The groundbreaking of 681 Florida is an 
exciting step in our efforts to create more 100% affordable housing in the Mission, and builds on 
our work to create more homes throughout the city for people experiencing homelessness. I want 
to thank the Mission community for their advocacy and commitment to creating affordable 
housing in the neighborhood.” 
 
The 681 Florida site was initially part of a plan for a large market-rate development at 2000-2070 
Bryant Street. That plan would have demolished seven buildings, including Cell Space, a 
longtime arts and creative space. The City worked with the community and the owner of the 
parcel to come to an agreement where 19,000 square feet of land was dedicated to the Mayor’s 
Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) as part of the inclusionary housing 
program to create 100% affordable housing. 
 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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“What we are celebrating today is the result of a long and hard-fought fight to preserve blue-
collar jobs and protect the working-class community of the Mission,” said Supervisor Hillary 
Ronen. “Casa Adelante / 681 Florida will be the seventh new affordable housing building in the 
Mission in the last few years. I will keep pushing, alongside my constituents, to bring my district 
the housing we need.” 
 
In February 2017, MOHCD selected Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA) and 
Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation (TNDC) to develop, own, and operate the 
affordable housing development proposed for the site. MEDA operates two other Casa Adelante 
housing developments, at 2060 Folsom and 1296 Shotwell, and 681 Florida will be the third 
Casa Adelante site. 
 
“Casa Adelante – 681 Florida starting construction is a true testament to the years-long 
collaborative effort to keep this particular location for arts and culture and affordable housing. 
We could not have done this without our allies, artists and neighbors joining forces to fight for 
this site, plus our City recognizing the value of this investment,” said Karoleen Feng, Director of 
Community Real Estate, MEDA. “We know as a community that Casa Adelante – 681 Florida is 
as an integral part of reversing the displacement of the Latinx and immigrant community. We are 
equally excited for the Mission community to see this space once again be reimagined as home 
for the arts.” 
 
The 130-unit development at 681 Florida Street, will have 39 Permanent Supportive Housing 
units for formerly homeless residents. Amenities at Casa Adelante – 681 Florida will include a 
9,250-square-foot commercial space suitable for production, exhibition, and arts performance as 
well as a number of green building features including 100% renewable energy and solar thermal 
heating. 
 
“Breaking ground on Casa Adelante – 681 Florida is a huge milestone in a project critical to 
ensuring more San Francisco families are housed,” said Don Falk, CEO, Tenderloin 
Neighborhood Development Corporation. “We’re proud to work with MEDA, MOHCD and the 
Mission neighborhood to foster supportive, sustainable homes for over 100 families, as well as a 
permanently affordable arts space.” 
 
“Carnaval San Francisco fought alongside of Our Mission No Eviction for the affordable 
housing and art space at 681 Florida Street, which we named the Beast on Bryant, since they 
were proposing to build luxury housing after the eviction of Cell Space, a collective shared art 
space once the home of Carnaval San Francisco and many arts organizations,” said Roberto 
Hernandez, Artistic Director and Executive Producer of SF Carnaval. “We come full circle and 
look forward to sharing the space with artists and arts organizations and serving the residential 
community!” 
 
The nine-story building, designed by Mithun includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and 
three-bedroom apartments. Once complete, the new homes will be available to applicants with a 
broad range of incomes including 35%, 40%, 50%, 60% and 85% Area Median Income (AMI) or 
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below. Construction is expected to last 22 months with an anticipated completion date of August 
2022. 
 
“We know that housing is healthcare, which is why increasing the City’s housing inventory is 
critical, and specifically increasing Permanent Supportive Housing as a permanent solution to 
homelessness, a key part of the Mayor’s Homelessness Recovery Plan,” said Abigail Stewart-
Kahn, Interim Director of San Francisco’s Department of Homelessness and Supportive 
Housing. “We are thankful to the Mayor and all the partners’ who joined forces to increase 
affordable housing units and create new homes for people experiencing homelessness.” 
 
Major financing for 681 Florida was provided by a $35 million investment from MOHCD that 
enabled the $90.3 million project to move forward, as well as a loan from the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development Multifamily Housing Program. The 
Permanent Supportive Housing units will be supported through a City-funded Local Operating 
Subsidy Program contract, and will be referred through the Department of Homelessness and 
Supportive Housing’s Coordinated Entry System. 
 
 


### 







the City’s efforts to activate and draw upon San Francisco’s unique neighborhood and cultural
assets, which was another key policy recommendation from the Task Force.
 
“Our economic recovery as a city depends on creating good paying jobs, making sure people
can afford to stay in San Francisco, and supporting our vibrant arts community. This project
helps us make progress on all fronts,” said Mayor Breed. “The groundbreaking of 681 Florida
is an exciting step in our efforts to create more 100% affordable housing in the Mission, and
builds on our work to create more homes throughout the city for people experiencing
homelessness. I want to thank the Mission community for their advocacy and commitment to
creating affordable housing in the neighborhood.”
 
The 681 Florida site was initially part of a plan for a large market-rate development at 2000-
2070 Bryant Street. That plan would have demolished seven buildings, including Cell Space, a
longtime arts and creative space. The City worked with the community and the owner of the
parcel to come to an agreement where 19,000 square feet of land was dedicated to the Mayor’s
Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) as part of the inclusionary
housing program to create 100% affordable housing.
 
“What we are celebrating today is the result of a long and hard-fought fight to preserve blue-
collar jobs and protect the working-class community of the Mission,” said Supervisor Hillary
Ronen. “Casa Adelante / 681 Florida will be the seventh new affordable housing building in
the Mission in the last few years. I will keep pushing, alongside my constituents, to bring my
district the housing we need.”
 
In February 2017, MOHCD selected Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA) and
Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation (TNDC) to develop, own, and operate
the affordable housing development proposed for the site. MEDA operates two other Casa
Adelante housing developments, at 2060 Folsom and 1296 Shotwell, and 681 Florida will be
the third Casa Adelante site.
 
“Casa Adelante – 681 Florida starting construction is a true testament to the years-long
collaborative effort to keep this particular location for arts and culture and affordable housing.
We could not have done this without our allies, artists and neighbors joining forces to fight for
this site, plus our City recognizing the value of this investment,” said Karoleen Feng, Director
of Community Real Estate, MEDA. “We know as a community that Casa Adelante – 681
Florida is as an integral part of reversing the displacement of the Latinx and immigrant
community. We are equally excited for the Mission community to see this space once again be
reimagined as home for the arts.”
 
The 130-unit development at 681 Florida Street, will have 39 Permanent Supportive Housing
units for formerly homeless residents. Amenities at Casa Adelante – 681 Florida will include a
9,250-square-foot commercial space suitable for production, exhibition, and arts performance
as well as a number of green building features including 100% renewable energy and solar
thermal heating.
 
“Breaking ground on Casa Adelante – 681 Florida is a huge milestone in a project critical to
ensuring more San Francisco families are housed,” said Don Falk, CEO, Tenderloin
Neighborhood Development Corporation. “We’re proud to work with MEDA, MOHCD and
the Mission neighborhood to foster supportive, sustainable homes for over 100 families, as
well as a permanently affordable arts space.”



 
“Carnaval San Francisco fought alongside of Our Mission No Eviction for the affordable
housing and art space at 681 Florida Street, which we named the Beast on Bryant, since they
were proposing to build luxury housing after the eviction of Cell Space, a collective shared art
space once the home of Carnaval San Francisco and many arts organizations,” said Roberto
Hernandez, Artistic Director and Executive Producer of SF Carnaval. “We come full circle
and look forward to sharing the space with artists and arts organizations and serving the
residential community!”
 
The nine-story building, designed by Mithun includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom,
and three-bedroom apartments. Once complete, the new homes will be available to applicants
with a broad range of incomes including 35%, 40%, 50%, 60% and 85% Area Median Income
(AMI) or below. Construction is expected to last 22 months with an anticipated completion
date of August 2022.
 
“We know that housing is healthcare,​ which is why increasing the City’s ​housing inventory is
critical, and specifically increasing Permanent Supportive Housing as a permanent solution to
homelessness, a key part of the Mayor’s Homelessness Recovery Plan,” said Abigail Stewart-
Kahn, Interim Director of San Francisco’s Department of Homelessness and Supportive
Housing. “We are thankful to the Mayor and all the partners’ who joined forces to increase
affordable housing units and create new homes for people experiencing homelessness.”
 
Major financing for 681 Florida was provided by a $35 million investment from MOHCD that
enabled the $90.3 million project to move forward, as well as a loan from the California
Department of Housing and Community Development Multifamily Housing Program. The
Permanent Supportive Housing units will be supported through a City-funded Local Operating
Subsidy Program contract, and will be referred through the Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing’s Coordinated Entry System.
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*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO AWARDED $29 MILLION FROM STATE’S

PROJECT HOMEKEY FOR PURCHASE OF 130-ROOM
HOTEL FOR HOMELESS HOUSING

State Homekey funding will allow the City to purchase a second hotel site for Permanent
Supportive Housing, as part of Mayor Breed’s Homelessness Recovery Plan

 
San Francisco, CA — Today San Francisco was awarded $29.1 million in capital and
operating costs from the State’s Project Homekey for the purchase of the Hotel Diva as
Permanent Supportive Housing. The San Francisco Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing and Episcopal Community Services, with support from Supervisor Aaron
Peskin, applied for $29.1 million in funding to purchase the 130-room hotel, located near
Union Square.
 
This is the second San Francisco project to receive Homekey funding. San Francisco was
recently awarded $45 million in Project Homekey funding to acquire the 232-room Granada
Hotel, also in District 3.
 
“Permanent Supportive Housing is the foundation of our Homelessness Recovery Plan. By
expanding access to housing and other support, we can create real opportunities for people to

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


PROJECT HOMEKEY FOR PURCHASE OF 130-ROOM HOTEL 
FOR HOMELESS HOUSING 


State Homekey funding will allow the City to purchase a second hotel site for Permanent 
Supportive Housing, as part of Mayor Breed’s Homelessness Recovery Plan 


 
San Francisco, CA — Today San Francisco was awarded $29.1 million in capital and operating 
costs from the State’s Project Homekey for the purchase of the Hotel Diva as Permanent 
Supportive Housing. The San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing 
and Episcopal Community Services, with support from Supervisor Aaron Peskin, applied for 
$29.1 million in funding to purchase the 130-room hotel, located near Union Square.  
 
This is the second San Francisco project to receive Homekey funding. San Francisco was 
recently awarded $45 million in Project Homekey funding to acquire the 232-room Granada 
Hotel, also in District 3. 
 
“Permanent Supportive Housing is the foundation of our Homelessness Recovery Plan. By 
expanding access to housing and other support, we can create real opportunities for people to get 
off the streets and create a path for them to live a fuller, healthier life,” said Mayor Breed. “We 
pursued additional Homekey State funding to ensure that the thousands of people who have been 
in our emergency housing during this public health crisis exit into stable housing placements.” 
 
Under the Homekey program, funding will be applied to the purchase of the Hotel Diva, a 130-
unit hotel at 440 Geary Street. The project will increase the City’s housing inventory by creating 
130 new units of Permanent Supportive Housing for people experiencing chronic homelessness. 
Supervisor Peskin advocated for the Hotel Diva to be submitted as a Project Homekey applicant. 
 
“Ultimately, the best way to address homelessness after a Navigation Center is established is to 
create housing to navigate residents to,” said Supervisor Aaron Peskin, who represents District 3 
where both San Francisco Homekey sites are located. “When we began negotiating emergency 
hotel contracts during my first deployment to the Emergency Operations Center, it was with the 
goal of acquiring sites for longterm supportive housing for those most in need. The Hotel Diva is 
a perfect opportunity for yet more permanently affordable housing and we’re moving quickly to 
deliver!” 
 
In July, Mayor Breed announced her Homelessness Recovery Plan, with planned investments in 
the upcoming two-year budget and continued delivery of funded projects and programs, 
expanding the City’s capacity in the Homelessness Response System. The Homelessness 
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Recovery Plan will make 6,000 placements available for people experiencing homelessness 
through Coordinated Entry, including 4,500 placements in Permanent Supportive Housing. This 
includes acquiring or leasing 1,500 new units of Permanent Supportive Housing over the next 
two years, the largest one-time expansion in the City in 20 years. The City currently provides 
housing, shelter, and services to over 13,000 formerly homeless people. This includes services 
for 10,000 people who are supported in 8,000 units of Permanent Supportive Housing. 
 
“Because housing is healthcare, we have been aggressive in our pursuit of funding as the City 
moves into a recovery phase and we begin the implementation of the Mayor’s Homelessness 
Recovery Plan,” said Abigail Stewart-Kahn, Interim Director of San Francisco’s Department of 
Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We are thankful to the Governor and for our partners’ 
help in securing this second grant from the state that will, combined with the Granada Hotel 
purchase, bring a total of 362 units online through Project Homekey funding.” 
 
“Now is the time to take bold action to acquire new units of Permanent Supportive Housing, a 
proven solution to ending chronic homelessness. We are grateful for the leadership and 
partnership of the City of San Francisco and the State of California on behalf of the most 
vulnerable residents of our community,” said Beth Stokes, Executive Director, Episcopal 
Community Services (ECS). “ECS’ acquisition of the Diva, in conjunction with the Granada, 
will add 362 units of Permanent Supportive Housing to the City’s homeless response system, one 
of the largest expansions of Permanent Supportive Housing in San Francisco history.” 
 
Building on the success of Project Roomkey, Project Homekey is the next phase in the State’s 
response to protecting Californians experiencing homelessness who are at high risk for serious 
illness and are impacted by COVID-19. Administered by the California Department of Housing 
and Community Development (HCD), $600 million in Project Homekey grant funding will be 
made available to local public entities, to purchase and rehabilitate housing, including hotels, 
motels, vacant apartment buildings, and other buildings and convert them into interim or 
permanent, long-term housing. 
 


### 







get off the streets and create a path for them to live a fuller, healthier life,” said Mayor Breed.
“We pursued additional Homekey State funding to ensure that the thousands of people who
have been in our emergency housing during this public health crisis exit into stable housing
placements.”
 
Under the Homekey program, funding will be applied to the purchase of the Hotel Diva, a
130-unit hotel at 440 Geary Street. The project will increase the City’s housing inventory by
creating 130 new units of Permanent Supportive Housing for people experiencing chronic
homelessness. Supervisor Peskin advocated for the Hotel Diva to be submitted as a Project
Homekey applicant.
 
“Ultimately, the best way to address homelessness after a Navigation Center is established is
to create housing to navigate residents to,” said Supervisor Aaron Peskin, who represents
District 3 where both San Francisco Homekey sites are located. “When we began negotiating
emergency hotel contracts during my first deployment to the Emergency Operations Center, it
was with the goal of acquiring sites for longterm supportive housing for those most in need.
The Hotel Diva is a perfect opportunity for yet more permanently affordable housing and
we’re moving quickly to deliver!”
 
In July, Mayor Breed announced her Homelessness Recovery Plan, with planned investments
in the upcoming two-year budget and continued delivery of funded projects and programs,
expanding the City’s capacity in the Homelessness Response System. The Homelessness
Recovery Plan will make 6,000 placements available for people experiencing homelessness
through Coordinated Entry, including 4,500 placements in Permanent Supportive Housing.
This includes acquiring or leasing 1,500 new units of Permanent Supportive Housing over the
next two years, the largest one-time expansion in the City in 20 years. The City currently
provides housing, shelter, and services to over 13,000 formerly homeless people. This includes
services for 10,000 people who are supported in 8,000 units of Permanent Supportive
Housing.
 
“Because housing is healthcare, we have been aggressive in our pursuit of funding as the City
moves into a recovery phase and we begin the implementation of the Mayor’s Homelessness
Recovery Plan,” said Abigail Stewart-Kahn, Interim Director of San Francisco’s Department
of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We are thankful to the Governor and for our
partners’ help in securing this second grant from the state that will, combined with the
Granada Hotel purchase, bring a total of 362 units online through Project Homekey funding.”
 
“Now is the time to take bold action to acquire new units of Permanent Supportive Housing, a
proven solution to ending chronic homelessness. We are grateful for the leadership and
partnership of the City of San Francisco and the State of California on behalf of the most
vulnerable residents of our community,” said Beth Stokes, Executive Director, Episcopal
Community Services (ECS). “ECS’ acquisition of the Diva, in conjunction with the Granada,
will add 362 units of Permanent Supportive Housing to the City’s homeless response system,
one of the largest expansions of Permanent Supportive Housing in San Francisco history.”
 
Building on the success of Project Roomkey, Project Homekey is the next phase in the State’s
response to protecting Californians experiencing homelessness who are at high risk for serious
illness and are impacted by COVID-19. Administered by the California Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD), $600 million in Project Homekey grant
funding will be made available to local public entities, to purchase and rehabilitate housing,



including hotels, motels, vacant apartment buildings, and other buildings and convert them
into interim or permanent, long-term housing.
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*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES INITIATIVE TO HELP

VULNERABLE RESIDENTS VOTE IN ELECTION
Deliver the Vote, a new citywide initiative in partnership with the Shanti Project, will help

homebound and marginalized residents cast their ballots in the 2020 Election
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the launch of Deliver the
Vote, a nonpartisan initiative to help San Francisco residents who are unable to leave their
homes vote in the upcoming election. The City of San Francisco has partnered with the Shanti
Project, a volunteer nonprofit organization, to provide personalized ballot pick-up and drop-
off services to San Francisco voters who request assistance.
 
“Voting is essential to our democracy, and we need to support people in our community who
need extra help to safely cast their ballot in this election,” said Mayor Breed. “Not everyone
can easily walk to their nearest polling place or mail box, and especially with COVID, it’s
more important than ever that we offer this service to our most vulnerable residents.”
 
The Deliver the Vote ballot pick-up and drop-off service is available to any San Francisco
voter who is unable to cast their ballot on their own, whether due to age or disability. Upon
request, a volunteer from the Shanti project will be assigned to go to a client’s residence, pick
up their ballot, drop it off at the City’s Voting Center or an official drop-off site, and provide
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
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the launch of Deliver the 
Vote, a nonpartisan initiative to help San Francisco residents who are unable to leave their homes 
vote in the upcoming election. The City of San Francisco has partnered with the Shanti Project, a 
volunteer nonprofit organization, to provide personalized ballot pick-up and drop-off services to 
San Francisco voters who request assistance. 
 
“Voting is essential to our democracy, and we need to support people in our community who 
need extra help to safely cast their ballot in this election,” said Mayor Breed. “Not everyone can 
easily walk to their nearest polling place or mail box, and especially with COVID, it’s more 
important than ever that we offer this service to our most vulnerable residents.” 
 
The Deliver the Vote ballot pick-up and drop-off service is available to any San Francisco voter 
who is unable to cast their ballot on their own, whether due to age or disability. Upon request, a 
volunteer from the Shanti project will be assigned to go to a client’s residence, pick up their 
ballot, drop it off at the City’s Voting Center or an official drop-off site, and provide information 
to the client on how they can track their ballot. 
 
“In this political climate, we must do everything possible to protect and preserve the civil rights 
of our most marginalized communities,” said Shakirah Simley, Director of Office Racial Equity, 
San Francisco Human Rights Commission. “Safe and accessible voting options are critical for 
San Francisco voters of color, many who struggle with disabilities, are homebound or 
immunocompromised. I’m thrilled to work with Shanti, DAS, and our community partners to 
deliver this essential service, and ensure equity and inclusion in this election cycle.” 
 
“It’s wonderful that the city, Shanti, and our nonprofit community network has come together to 
ensure that older and disabled people are able to cast their votes,” said Shireen McSpadden, 
Executive Director, San Francisco Department of Disability and Aging Services. “This is an 
especially important election, and we want to ensure that those sheltering in place and those with 
mobility challenges have their voices heard.”  
 
Trained and trusted Shanti volunteers have been providing essential services to San Francisco 
residents since the beginning of COVID-19 and the Stay Home Health Order. These volunteers 
will provide a majority of the ballot pick-up and drop-off services. The Shanti project has 
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partnered with several trusted nonprofit organizations to support this effort, including Bayview 
Senior Services, Tenderloin Community Benefit District, Curry Senior Services, and Golden 
Gate National Parks Conservancy.  
 
“In a democracy, there is perhaps nothing more essential than voting,” said Kaushik Roy Shanti 
Project’s Executive Director. “Shanti is honored to work with the City and many of our great 
nonprofit partners to help ensure that all registered voters in San Francisco have the opportunity 
to be heard in this election” 
 
Chip Supanich, a longtime San Francisco resident who has been HIV-positive for 35 years and 
experienced extreme mobility challenges, shared his gratitude for this service, “I know so many 
folks for whom physically voting is virtually impossible. This is an invaluable service for the 
City to offer.” 
 
Any San Francisco resident who is homebound or otherwise facing challenges to dropping off 
their ballot can contact the Shanti Project for assistance by texting 415-449-7190 or calling 415-
674-4701. Other neighborhood nonprofit organizations who would like to help with this service 
in their community should contact the Shanti by email at vote@shanti.org. For more information 
about Deliver the Vote, visit www.shanti.org. 
 
Voting Options in San Francisco 
Everyone registered to vote by October 19 in San Francisco was sent a vote-by-mail ballot for 
the November 3, 2020 election. San Francisco residents who are able to leave home to vote have 
several options for casting their ballot.  
 


- By Mail – The USPS provides nearly 1,400 collection boxes in the City. Find your 
nearest mail box here, and ensure the USPS can collect your ballot and postmark it on or 
before Election Day. 


- At the Voting Center (Civic Center) – Through November 3, and open weekends 
starting Saturday, October 24. 


- At a Polling Place on Election Day – Polling places are open on November 3 from 7 
a.m. to 8 p.m. There are 588 polling places in San Francisco. Find your polling places on 
San Francisco’s Voter Portal.  


- At Ballot Drop-Off Sites - Through November 3, voters can drop-off ballots at the 
Voting Center. 


o Starting October 31 and through November 3, the Department will provide 12 
drop-off sites throughout the City. Find your official ballot drop-off station here. 


- Accessible Vote-by-Mail System – allows voters to mark screen-readable vote-by-mail 
ballots using common internet-connected devices. After marking an AVBM ballot, a 
voter must download and print the ballot and return the ballot printout by mail or in 
person in a timely manner, just as vote-by-mail voters who use official paper ballots must 
do. 
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Voting Center 
The Voting Center provides ballots and services to all City residents who wish to pick-up or 
drop-off vote-by-mail ballots, register to vote (before or after the registration deadline), obtain 
personal assistance, use accessible voting equipment, obtain replacement ballots, or cast their 
ballots in person. 
 
To protect the health of voters wishing to obtain in-person voting services, the Voting Center is 
set up in the area outside of Bill Graham Civic Auditorium on 99 Grove Street, between Polk and 
Larkin Streets. 
 
The Voting Center is open during these times: 


• Every weekday through November 2, from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
• Two weekends, October 24 and 25, and October 31 and November 1, from 10 a.m. to 4 


p.m. 
• Election Day, Tuesday, November 3, from 7 a.m. to 8 p.m. (same voting hours as polling 


places). 
 
The Voting Center offers accessible voting tools such as page magnifiers, pen grips, and seated 
voting, as well as accessible ballot-marking devices with touchscreen/audio format and personal 
assistive device compatibility. Any voter may request to vote “curbside” at the Voting Center by 
calling (415) 554-4375 or by asking a companion to enter the voting center to request delivery of 
voting materials to the voter. 
 
To make their voting experience faster and safer, voters can use the Voting Locations and Wait 
Times Tool to check wait times at the Voting Center as they are planning their trip. With early 
voting opportunities available before Election Day, San Francisco encourages residents to vote 
as early as possible.  
 
General Voting Information 
San Franciscans can review their registration information, find their polling place, track their 
ballot, and more, using San Francisco’s Voter Portal. For more information, go to 
https://sfelections.sfgov.org/.  
 
For questions, email: SFVote@sfgov.org or reach the Department of Elections by phone:  
 
English: (415) 554-4375 
TTY: (415) 554-4386 
中文: (415) 554-4367 
Español: (415) 554-4366 
Filipino: (415) 554-4310 
 


### 
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information to the client on how they can track their ballot.
 
“In this political climate, we must do everything possible to protect and preserve the civil
rights of our most marginalized communities,” said Shakirah Simley, Director of Office Racial
Equity, San Francisco Human Rights Commission. “Safe and accessible voting options are
critical for San Francisco voters of color, many who struggle with disabilities, are homebound
or immunocompromised. I’m thrilled to work with Shanti, DAS, and our community partners
to deliver this essential service, and ensure equity and inclusion in this election cycle.”
 
“It’s wonderful that the city, Shanti, and our nonprofit community network has come together
to ensure that older and disabled people are able to cast their votes,” said Shireen McSpadden,
Executive Director, San Francisco Department of Disability and Aging Services. “This is an
especially important election, and we want to ensure that those sheltering in place and those
with mobility challenges have their voices heard.” 
 
Trained and trusted Shanti volunteers have been providing essential services to San Francisco
residents since the beginning of COVID-19 and the Stay Home Health Order. These
volunteers will provide a majority of the ballot pick-up and drop-off services. The Shanti
project has partnered with several trusted nonprofit organizations to support this effort,
including Bayview Senior Services, Tenderloin Community Benefit District, Curry Senior
Services, and Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy.
 
“In a democracy, there is perhaps nothing more essential than voting,” said Kaushik Roy
Shanti Project’s Executive Director. “Shanti is honored to work with the City and many of our
great nonprofit partners to help ensure that all registered voters in San Francisco have the
opportunity to be heard in this election”
 
Chip Supanich, a longtime San Francisco resident who has been HIV-positive for 35 years and
experienced extreme mobility challenges, shared his gratitude for this service, “I know so
many folks for whom physically voting is virtually impossible. This is an invaluable service
for the City to offer.”
 
Any San Francisco resident who is homebound or otherwise facing challenges to dropping off
their ballot can contact the Shanti Project for assistance by texting 415-449-7190 or calling
415-674-4701. Other neighborhood nonprofit organizations who would like to help with this
service in their community should contact the Shanti by email at vote@shanti.org. For more
information about Deliver the Vote, visit www.shanti.org.
 
Voting Options in San Francisco
Everyone registered to vote by October 19 in San Francisco was sent a vote-by-mail ballot for
the November 3, 2020 election. San Francisco residents who are able to leave home to vote
have several options for casting their ballot.
 

By Mail – The USPS provides nearly 1,400 collection boxes in the City. Find your
nearest mail box here, and ensure the USPS can collect your ballot and postmark it on or
before Election Day.
At the Voting Center (Civic Center) – Through November 3, and open weekends
starting Saturday, October 24.
At a Polling Place on Election Day – Polling places are open on November 3 from 7
a.m. to 8 p.m. There are 588 polling places in San Francisco. Find your polling places

mailto:vote@shanti.org
http://www.shanti.org/
https://tools.usps.com/find-location.htm


on San Francisco’s Voter Portal.
At Ballot Drop-Off Sites - Through November 3, voters can drop-off ballots at the
Voting Center.

Starting October 31 and through November 3, the Department will provide 12
drop-off sites throughout the City. Find your official ballot drop-off station here.

Accessible Vote-by-Mail System – allows voters to mark screen-readable vote-by-mail
ballots using common internet-connected devices. After marking an AVBM ballot, a
voter must download and print the ballot and return the ballot printout by mail or in
person in a timely manner, just as vote-by-mail voters who use official paper ballots
must do.

 
Voting Center
The Voting Center provides ballots and services to all City residents who wish to pick-up or
drop-off vote-by-mail ballots, register to vote (before or after the registration deadline), obtain
personal assistance, use accessible voting equipment, obtain replacement ballots, or cast their
ballots in person.
 
To protect the health of voters wishing to obtain in-person voting services, the Voting Center
is set up in the area outside of Bill Graham Civic Auditorium on 99 Grove Street, between
Polk and Larkin Streets.
 
The Voting Center is open during these times:

Every weekday through November 2, from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.
Two weekends, October 24 and 25, and October 31 and November 1, from 10 a.m. to 4
p.m.
Election Day, Tuesday, November 3, from 7 a.m. to 8 p.m. (same voting hours as
polling places).

 
The Voting Center offers accessible voting tools such as page magnifiers, pen grips, and
seated voting, as well as accessible ballot-marking devices with touchscreen/audio format and
personal assistive device compatibility. Any voter may request to vote “curbside” at the
Voting Center by calling (415) 554-4375 or by asking a companion to enter the voting center
to request delivery of voting materials to the voter.
 
To make their voting experience faster and safer, voters can use the Voting Locations and
Wait Times Tool to check wait times at the Voting Center as they are planning their trip. With
early voting opportunities available before Election Day, San Francisco encourages residents
to vote as early as possible.
 
General Voting Information
San Franciscans can review their registration information, find their polling place, track their
ballot, and more, using San Francisco’s Voter Portal. For more information, go to
https://sfelections.sfgov.org/.
 
For questions, email: SFVote@sfgov.org or reach the Department of Elections by phone:

English: (415) 554-4375
TTY: (415) 554-4386
中文: (415) 554-4367
Español: (415) 554-4366

https://sfelections.org/tools/portal/
https://sfelections.sfgov.org/official-ballot-drop-stations-san-francisco
https://sfelections.org/tools/map_poll_time/
https://sfelections.org/tools/map_poll_time/
https://sfelections.org/tools/portal/
https://sfelections.sfgov.org/
mailto:SFVote@sfgov.org


Filipino: (415) 554-4310
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES FEE AND TAX WAIVERS TO SUPPORT

ENTERTAINMENT AND NIGHTLIFE BUSINESSES
Date: Monday, October 26, 2020 1:04:12 PM
Attachments: 10.26.20 Small Business Fee Waivers.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2020 9:32 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES FEE AND TAX WAIVERS TO
SUPPORT ENTERTAINMENT AND NIGHTLIFE BUSINESSES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, October 26, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES FEE AND TAX

WAIVERS TO SUPPORT ENTERTAINMENT AND NIGHTLIFE
BUSINESSES

Fee and tax waiver will help approximately 300 businesses that have been unable to open due
to COVID-19

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Treasurer José Cisneros today announced
San Francisco will provide $2.5 million in support for entertainment and nightlife venues in
the form of additional fee and tax waivers. These businesses have been in large part unable to
open due to COVID-19 and need assistance now. Waiving license and business registration
fees and taxes for these businesses is part of Mayor Breed’s efforts to support San Francisco’s
economic recovery, as is aligned with the policy recommendations from the Economic
Recovery Task Force.
 
“We need to do more to support those businesses that contribute to San Francisco’s unique
and vibrant culture, which is a cornerstone for our economic recovery as a city,” said Mayor
London Breed. “As we recover and keep up our progress on reopening, we want to make sure
these businesses are still around to bring music, performances and excitement, as well as
provide jobs for so many. Entertainment and nightlife are such an important part of why

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
Monday, October 26, 2020 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org  
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES FEE AND TAX 


WAIVERS TO SUPPORT ENTERTAINMENT AND NIGHTLIFE 
BUSINESSES 


Fee and tax waiver will help approximately 300 businesses that have been unable to open due to 
COVID-19 


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Treasurer José Cisneros today announced 
San Francisco will provide $2.5 million in support for entertainment and nightlife venues in the 
form of additional fee and tax waivers. These businesses have been in large part unable to open 
due to COVID-19 and need assistance now. Waiving license and business registration fees and 
taxes for these businesses is part of Mayor Breed’s efforts to support San Francisco’s economic 
recovery, as is aligned with the policy recommendations from the Economic Recovery Task 
Force. 
 
“We need to do more to support those businesses that contribute to San Francisco’s unique and 
vibrant culture, which is a cornerstone for our economic recovery as a city,” said Mayor London 
Breed. “As we recover and keep up our progress on reopening, we want to make sure these 
businesses are still around to bring music, performances and excitement, as well as provide jobs 
for so many. Entertainment and nightlife are such an important part of why people live and visit 
our city, and we hope these additional fee waivers reduce some of the financial stress they’re 
experiencing.” 
 
During the COVID-19 pandemic, San Francisco’s entertainment and nightlife businesses and 
venues have either not been able to operate at all, or in a very limited capacity, which has 
reduced their ability to survive. These businesses include music venues, clubs, bars, restaurants 
with live performances, all of which contribute tremendously to San Francisco’s culture. Despite 
not being able to operate, these businesses were still required to pay certain license and business 
registration fees and taxes.  
 
“When San Francisco faces an incredible challenge, the entire community pulls together,” said 
Treasurer José Cisneros. “This tax and fee relief will remove a looming burden from many 
businesses who’ve been shuttered by COVID-19.” 
 
The City will provide financial relief for approximately 300 businesses that are permitted as 
entertainment venues and that have gross receipts of less than $20 million, representing a total of 
approximately $2.5 million in support for these businesses. Relief will be provided by waiving 
these businesses’ regulatory license fees and Business Registration Fees for two years and by 
waiving their Payroll Expense Taxes for 2020. This is a fee waiver, not a deferral, so businesses 
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will not have to pay back these fees at a later date. Businesses will still be required to file all 
business tax returns. 
 
“Our entertainment venues are a large part of the reason people flock to San Francisco and rave 
about our culture,” said Ben Bleiman, President of the San Francisco Entertainment 
Commission. “They are also particularly vulnerable during these times due to their business 
models. We must do all we can to support these businesses, so that we have places to be able to 
come together once we’re able to come together again. Thank you to Mayor Breed for her 
continued support of our entertainment and nightlife venues.” 
 
Waiving these fees aligns with the Economic Recovery Task Force’s policy recommendations of 
preserving operations and lessening regulatory burdens for businesses. Additionally, the ERTF 
recommended supporting arts and cultural organizations, and this new policy provides financial 
relief for those organizations, many of which have been unable to open since March. 
 
These new fee waivers build on Mayor Breed’s prior support for San Francisco small businesses. 
In August, Mayor Breed and Treasurer Cisneros announced they would continue to defer 
collection of Business Registration Fees and the Unified License Fees until March 1, 2021. 
These deferrals remain in place for other businesses. 
 
Mayor Breed’s other recently announced efforts to support small business and arts and cultural 
organizations include: 


• Extending Shared Spaces permits through June 30, 2021 and working to make elements 
of the program permanent beyond that date. 


• SF Shines Program, providing $1.6 million in grants and design services to support 
neighborhood businesses that need to purchase furniture and fixtures and reconfigure 
space in order to meet health requirements for operating. 


• Directing nearly $6 million in funding for artists, teaching artists, arts organizations, and 
cultural workers, including a new universal basic income pilot program for San Francisco 
artists. 


• The Cultural Districts Community Building and Impact program will award $265,000 to 
each legislatively approved Cultural District working to preserve, strengthen, and 
promote their cultural communities. 


 
Since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, Mayor Breed has launched several initiatives 
and programs to assist businesses in San Francisco: 


• Business tax deferrals for small businesses with up to $10 million in gross receipts. 
Mayor Breed and Treasurer Cisneros notified small businesses that their first quarter 
businesses taxes can be deferred until February 2021. No interest payments, fees, or fines 
will accrue as a result of the deferral. 


• $10 million Workers and Families First Paid Sick Leave Program, proving up to 40 hours 
of paid sick leave per employee. 


• $9 million Emergency Loan Fund providing up to $50,000 in zero-interest loans for 
individual small businesses. 
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• $2.5 million Resiliency Grants providing up to $10,000 grants to over 300 small 
businesses. 


• $3.2 million for the African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund. 
• $1 million for Neighborhood Mini-Grants to Support 300 Small Businesses in 


Underserved Communities. 
• $2.5 million in support for working artists and arts and cultural organizations financially 


impacted by COVID-19. 
• Supporting nonprofits funded by the City so workers do not lose their incomes.  
• Issuing a Moratorium on Commercial Evictions for small and medium sized businesses 


that cannot afford to pay rent. 
• Capping the commission at 15% on 3rd party food delivery companies. 
• Advocating for additional resources for small business and workers through the federal 


CARES Act. 
• Establishing City Philanthropic www.Give2SF.org Fund, where donations will support 


housing stabilization, food security, and financial security for workers and small 
businesses impacted by coronavirus. 


• Launching a one-stop City website for businesses and workers seeking resources, 
contacts, and updates during the COVID-19 emergency: www.oewd.org/covid19.  


 
 


### 



http://www.give2sf.org/
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people live and visit our city, and we hope these additional fee waivers reduce some of the
financial stress they’re experiencing.”
 
During the COVID-19 pandemic, San Francisco’s entertainment and nightlife businesses and
venues have either not been able to operate at all, or in a very limited capacity, which has
reduced their ability to survive. These businesses include music venues, clubs, bars,
restaurants with live performances, all of which contribute tremendously to San Francisco’s
culture. Despite not being able to operate, these businesses were still required to pay certain
license and business registration fees and taxes.
 
“When San Francisco faces an incredible challenge, the entire community pulls together,” said
Treasurer José Cisneros. “This tax and fee relief will remove a looming burden from many
businesses who’ve been shuttered by COVID-19.”
 
The City will provide financial relief for approximately 300 businesses that are permitted as
entertainment venues and that have gross receipts of less than $20 million, representing a total
of approximately $2.5 million in support for these businesses. Relief will be provided by
waiving these businesses’ regulatory license fees and Business Registration Fees for two years
and by waiving their Payroll Expense Taxes for 2020. This is a fee waiver, not a deferral, so
businesses will not have to pay back these fees at a later date. Businesses will still be required
to file all business tax returns.
 
“Our entertainment venues are a large part of the reason people flock to San Francisco and
rave about our culture,” said Ben Bleiman, President of the San Francisco Entertainment
Commission. “They are also particularly vulnerable during these times due to their business
models. We must do all we can to support these businesses, so that we have places to be able
to come together once we’re able to come together again. Thank you to Mayor Breed for her
continued support of our entertainment and nightlife venues.”
 
Waiving these fees aligns with the Economic Recovery Task Force’s policy recommendations
of preserving operations and lessening regulatory burdens for businesses. Additionally, the
ERTF recommended supporting arts and cultural organizations, and this new policy provides
financial relief for those organizations, many of which have been unable to open since March.
 
These new fee waivers build on Mayor Breed’s prior support for San Francisco small
businesses. In August, Mayor Breed and Treasurer Cisneros announced they would continue
to defer collection of Business Registration Fees and the Unified License Fees until March 1,
2021. These deferrals remain in place for other businesses.
 
Mayor Breed’s other recently announced efforts to support small business and arts and cultural
organizations include:

Extending Shared Spaces permits through June 30, 2021 and working to make elements
of the program permanent beyond that date.
SF Shines Program, providing $1.6 million in grants and design services to support
neighborhood businesses that need to purchase furniture and fixtures and reconfigure
space in order to meet health requirements for operating.
Directing nearly $6 million in funding for artists, teaching artists, arts organizations, and
cultural workers, including a new universal basic income pilot program for San
Francisco artists.
The Cultural Districts Community Building and Impact program will award $265,000 to



each legislatively approved Cultural District working to preserve, strengthen, and
promote their cultural communities.

 
Since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic, Mayor Breed has launched several initiatives
and programs to assist businesses in San Francisco:

Business tax deferrals for small businesses with up to $10 million in gross receipts.
Mayor Breed and Treasurer Cisneros notified small businesses that their first quarter
businesses taxes can be deferred until February 2021. No interest payments, fees, or
fines will accrue as a result of the deferral.
$10 million Workers and Families First Paid Sick Leave Program, proving up to 40
hours of paid sick leave per employee.
$9 million Emergency Loan Fund providing up to $50,000 in zero-interest loans for
individual small businesses.
$2.5 million Resiliency Grants providing up to $10,000 grants to over 300 small
businesses.
$3.2 million for the African American Small Business Revolving Loan Fund.
$1 million for Neighborhood Mini-Grants to Support 300 Small Businesses in
Underserved Communities.
$2.5 million in support for working artists and arts and cultural organizations financially
impacted by COVID-19.
Supporting nonprofits funded by the City so workers do not lose their incomes. 
Issuing a Moratorium on Commercial Evictions for small and medium sized businesses
that cannot afford to pay rent.
Capping the commission at 15% on 3rd party food delivery companies.
Advocating for additional resources for small business and workers through the federal
CARES Act.
Establishing City Philanthropic www.Give2SF.org Fund, where donations will support
housing stabilization, food security, and financial security for workers and small
businesses impacted by coronavirus.
Launching a one-stop City website for businesses and workers seeking resources,
contacts, and updates during the COVID-19 emergency: www.oewd.org/covid19. 

 
 

###
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CREATION OF COMMUNITY LIAISON UNIT

IN SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT
Date: Friday, October 23, 2020 9:25:43 AM
Attachments: 10.23.20 Community Liaison Unit.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Friday, October 23, 2020 at 8:35 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES
CREATION OF COMMUNITY LIAISON UNIT IN SAN FRANCISCO POLICE
DEPARTMENT
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, October 23, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CREATION OF

COMMUNITY LIAISON UNIT IN SAN FRANCISCO POLICE
DEPARTMENT

A new Community Liaison Unit will focus on supporting San Francisco’s diverse
communities, improving reporting of crime, and supporting victims of hate crimes and

prejudice-based incidents
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the creation of a new
Community Liaison Unit at the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD). The unit is a team
of five dedicated officers from the Police Department’s Community Engagement Division that
will focus on supporting the community’s public safety needs and ensuring San Francisco’s
diverse communities feel safe and comfortable working with the Police Department.
 
The primary focus of the Community Liaison Unit is to gain the trust of the community,
improve reporting of crime, support victims and their families, and seek out information that
leads to the resolution of hate crimes and prejudice-based incidents. This team of officers will
be responsible for SFPD’s tracking of prejudice-based incidents, identifying patterns, and
intervention techniques, and helping the community navigate the criminal justice system. They
will serve as a liaison to San Francisco’s diverse communities, including the Asian and Pacific
Islander, African American, LGBTQ, Muslim, and Latino communities, communities with
limited English proficiency, and older San Franciscans.

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


A new Community Liaison Unit will focus on supporting San Francisco’s diverse communities, 
improving reporting of crime, and supporting victims of hate crimes and prejudice-based 


incidents 
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the creation of a new 
Community Liaison Unit at the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD). The unit is a team of 
five dedicated officers from the Police Department’s Community Engagement Division that will 
focus on supporting the community’s public safety needs and ensuring San Francisco’s diverse 
communities feel safe and comfortable working with the Police Department. 
 
The primary focus of the Community Liaison Unit is to gain the trust of the community, improve 
reporting of crime, support victims and their families, and seek out information that leads to the 
resolution of hate crimes and prejudice-based incidents. This team of officers will be responsible 
for SFPD’s tracking of prejudice-based incidents, identifying patterns, and intervention 
techniques, and helping the community navigate the criminal justice system. They will serve as a 
liaison to San Francisco’s diverse communities, including the Asian and Pacific Islander, African 
American, LGBTQ, Muslim, and Latino communities, communities with limited English 
proficiency, and older San Franciscans. 
 
“We want to make sure that anyone who is a victim of a hate crime or any other crime motivated 
by prejudice knows that their City and their Police Department is there to help them. This new 
unit will give the community a place to turn to when they need assistance, and where they know 
they’ll be treated with dignity and respect,” said Mayor Breed. “We’re allocating our resources 
in a way that focuses on helping the community navigate the criminal justice system, which can 
be confusing and intimidating if you don’t have help, and we’re continuing our work to prevent 
crime from happening in the first place.” 
 
“Building trust and communication between law enforcement and diverse communities is crucial 
to keeping our communities safe,” said Assemblymember David Chiu (D-San Francisco). “With 
anti-Asian sentiment and hate crimes on the rise, this new program will be especially beneficial 
for our API communities navigating this difficult time.” 
 
The Community Liaison Unit is part of Mayor Breed’s public safety reform roadmap and efforts 
to support violence prevention and deploy resources in a way that supports the community. It 
allows police officers to conduct proactive outreach with community members and community-
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based organizations, and to build relationships before crime happens. When crimes do occur, the 
Community Liaison Unit is charged with enhancing the Department’s response and providing 
assistance to victims. 
 
The creation of the new unit comes as there are increased reports of violence against Asian and 
Pacific Islander residents in San Francisco. The Community Liaison Unit builds on Mayor 
Breed’s efforts to bring the community together against discrimination. Recently, Mayor Breed 
and the San Francisco Human Rights Commission launched the Stand Together campaign, which 
is focused on denouncing and combating discrimination in San Francisco. Additionally, Mayor 
Breed’s Opportunities for All program has created a Cross-Cultural Justice Cohort, which has 10 
youth who are working to build a youth coalition between the Asian and Pacific Islander 
community and the African American community in San Francisco. 
 
“The San Francisco Police Department is committed to working collaboratively with community 
members, community-based organizations, other city agencies, and others, in order to reduce 
violent crime, create safer communities, and enhance the health and vibrancy of neighborhoods 
in San Francisco,” said San Francisco Police Chief William Scott. “This new unit within our 
Community Engagement Division will support our ongoing efforts and ensure that the City’s 
diverse communities feel safe and comfortable working with SFPD officers. Maintaining 
this trust and cooperation with the community is essential to our crime prevention mission and in 
solving crimes when they do occur.” 
 
“CYC has a strong commitment to build a violence free community with our partners by 
developing community driven strategies to address the root causes of violence,” said Sarah Wan, 
Executive Director, Community Youth Center of San Francisco. “It is important for our 
monolingual Chinese and immigrant communities to feel safe and have more access to resources 
to live without fear. The newly formed Community Liaison Unit is one step forward in being 
more intentional in building and earning trustful relationships with the community.” 
 
“As someone who has had over 30 years of experience in working with our seniors and 
monolingual Chinese residents, I am excited, grateful and hopeful for this newly formed SFPD 
unit to work with our community. This new unit will help address the underlying causes of some 
of the safety issues in a linguistically and culturally competent way,” said Marlene Tran, 
Spokesperson of the Visitacion Valley Asian Alliance, current Southeast Community Facility 
Commissioner, and former Immigrant Rights Commissioner. “This effort by Mayor Breed and 
the SFPD is important to our community’s safety especially during this unprecedented time. I 
also want to take this opportunity to remind all our residents to support our police department 
and report all crimes.” 
 
San Francisco’s existing Community Liaison Officers in the SFPD’s Community Engagement 
Division work hand-in-hand with Mayor Breed’s Street Violence Intervention Program and 
community crime prevention programs. They also educate and advise communities of their rights 
and responsibilities.  
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This new unit will support San Francisco’s Community Liaison Officers at each of the ten SFPD 
district stations. The officers will serve as a liaison between and in partnership with the SFPD 
District Stations, Investigations Bureau, the Media Relations Unit, the District Attorney’s Office, 
and the community, to improve the flow of communication on the status of cases and keep 
victims informed. 
 
The officers in the Community Liaison Unit will regularly attend community meetings 
throughout the City with an emphasis in getting to know the community well, building 
partnerships and establishing trust. They will provide educational information to the community 
to prevent individuals from becoming victims of crime and to encourage reporting. Additionally, 
they will coordinate presentations and connect the community with nonprofit agencies and other 
resources that specifically address hate crimes and prejudice-based incidents. 
 
The Unit aims to serve all members of San Francisco’s diverse communities, including residents 
who do not speak English. Over the coming months, the Community Liaison Unit will promote 
the use of crime tip lines dedicated to non-English language speakers, and will improve the 
SFPD’s communication with monolingual speaking residents through the use of social media 
platforms such as “We Chat.” 
 
 


### 







 
“We want to make sure that anyone who is a victim of a hate crime or any other crime
motivated by prejudice knows that their City and their Police Department is there to help
them. This new unit will give the community a place to turn to when they need assistance, and
where they know they’ll be treated with dignity and respect,” said Mayor Breed. “We’re
allocating our resources in a way that focuses on helping the community navigate the criminal
justice system, which can be confusing and intimidating if you don’t have help, and we’re
continuing our work to prevent crime from happening in the first place.”
 
“Building trust and communication between law enforcement and diverse communities is
crucial to keeping our communities safe,” said Assemblymember David Chiu (D-San
Francisco). “With anti-Asian sentiment and hate crimes on the rise, this new program will be
especially beneficial for our API communities navigating this difficult time.”
 
The Community Liaison Unit is part of Mayor Breed’s public safety reform roadmap and
efforts to support violence prevention and deploy resources in a way that supports the
community. It allows police officers to conduct proactive outreach with community members
and community-based organizations, and to build relationships before crime happens. When
crimes do occur, the Community Liaison Unit is charged with enhancing the Department’s
response and providing assistance to victims.
 
The creation of the new unit comes as there are increased reports of violence against Asian
and Pacific Islander residents in San Francisco. The Community Liaison Unit builds on Mayor
Breed’s efforts to bring the community together against discrimination. Recently, Mayor
Breed and the San Francisco Human Rights Commission launched the Stand Together
campaign, which is focused on denouncing and combating discrimination in San Francisco.
Additionally, Mayor Breed’s Opportunities for All program has created a Cross-Cultural
Justice Cohort, which has 10 youth who are working to build a youth coalition between the­
Asian and Pacific Islander community and the African American community in San Francisco.
 
“The San Francisco Police Department is committed to working collaboratively
with community members, community-based organizations, other city agencies, and others, in
order to reduce violent crime, create safer communities, and enhance the health and vibrancy
of neighborhoods in San Francisco,” said San Francisco Police Chief William Scott. “This
new unit within our Community Engagement Division will support our ongoing efforts and
ensure that the City’s diverse communities feel safe and comfortable working with SFPD
officers. Maintaining this trust and cooperation with the community is essential to our crime
prevention mission and in solving crimes when they do occur.”
 
“CYC has a strong commitment to build a violence free community with our partners by
developing community driven strategies to address the root causes of violence,” said Sarah
Wan, Executive Director, Community Youth Center of San Francisco. “It is important for our
monolingual Chinese and immigrant communities to feel safe and have more access to
resources to live without fear. The newly formed Community Liaison Unit is one step forward
in being more intentional in building and earning trustful relationships with the community.”
 
“As someone who has had over 30 years of experience in working with our seniors and
monolingual Chinese residents, I am excited, grateful and hopeful for this newly formed SFPD
unit to work with our community. This new unit will help address the underlying causes of
some of the safety issues in a linguistically and culturally competent way,” said Marlene Tran,



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
community crime prevention programs. They also educate and advise communities of their
rights and responsibilities.
 
This new unit will support San Francisco’s Community Liaison Officers at each of the ten
SFPD district stations. The officers will serve as a liaison between and in partnership with the
SFPD District Stations, Investigations Bureau, the Media Relations Unit, the District
Attorney’s Office, and the community, to improve the flow of communication on the status of
cases and keep victims informed.
 
The officers in the Community Liaison Unit will regularly attend community meetings
throughout the City with an emphasis in getting to know the community well, building
partnerships and establishing trust. They will provide educational information to the
community to prevent individuals from becoming victims of crime and to encourage reporting.
Additionally, they will coordinate presentations and connect the community with nonprofit
agencies and other resources that specifically address hate crimes and prejudice-based
incidents.
 
The Unit aims to serve all members of San Francisco’s diverse communities, including
residents who do not speak English. Over the coming months, the Community Liaison Unit
will promote the use of crime tip lines dedicated to non-English language speakers, and will
improve the SFPD’s communication with monolingual speaking residents through the use of
social media platforms such as “We Chat.”
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 447 Battery Street (Case No. 2014.1036ENV) - Draft Environmental Impact Report publication
Date: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 4:59:11 PM
Attachments: 447 Battery Draft EIR Notice of Availability.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: Rachel Schuett <rachel.schuett@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 at 2:25 PM
To: Rachel Schuett <rachel.schuett@sfgov.org>
Subject: 447 Battery Street (Case No. 2014.1036ENV) - Draft Environmental Impact Report
publication
 
All,
 
The San Francisco Planning Department has published a Draft Environmental Impact Report
for the proposed project at 447 Battery Street (Case No. 2014.1036ENV). The Notice of Public
Hearing and Availability of a Draft Environmental Impact Report is attached. 
 
The document may be accessed here: https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-
documents?field_environmental_review_categ_target_id=All&items_per_page=All
 
Hard copies and electronic files may be made available upon request. 
 
Best,
Rachel

Environmental Review Documents | SF Planning
08/27/2019: Don Lewis don.lewis@sfgov.org: 88 Bluxome Street and Bay Club SF Tennis
Interim Site Project 2015-012490ENV. Correction: on June 19, 2019 the Planning Department
published a newspaper ad which incorrectly stated that there is a 30-day period for public
comments and/or appeals of the determination that no environmental impact report (EIR) is
required for the Bay Club SF Tennis ...

sfplanning.org
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AND AVAILABILITY OF A DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
 


HEARING INFORMATION 


Hearing Date: November 12, 2020 


Time:  After 1:00 PM 


Location: City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 400 


Case Type: Environmental (Draft Environmental Impact Report) 


Hearing Body: Planning Commission 


PROJECT INFORMATION 


Project Address: 447 Battery Street   


Cross Street(s): Merchant and Washington streets 


Block/Lot No.: Block 0206 Lot 002   


Zoning District(s): C-3-O (Downtown Office)  


Plan Area: Downtown Area Plan   


APPLICATION INFORMATION 


Case.: 2014.1036E   


Building Permit:  NA  


Applicant/Agent: 447 Partners, LLC  


Telephone: (415) 291-3300   


E-Mail: rob@bluestoneAMC.Com  


 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


A draft environmental impact report (EIR) has been prepared by the San Francisco Planning Department in 


connection with this project. The project sponsor, 447 Partners, LLC, proposes to redevelop a 7,178-square-foot 


(0.16-acre) rectangular property at the northwest corner of Battery and Merchant streets, within San Francisco’s 


Financial District neighborhood, with a large hotel and ground-floor retail. The project site is currently occupied 


by an approximately 25,180-square-foot, three-story building with five commercial tenants. The building’s office 


and retail uses include a furniture rental store and wine bar. The 447 Battery Street Project (proposed project) 


would involve retaining the existing building façade, as seen by the public; replacing the internal structure to 


bring it up to building and structural codes; and constructing an addition to create a new 18-story, 200-foot-tall 


hotel with a ground-floor lobby and restaurant. The hotel would have a total of 198 hotel rooms on 16 floors, 


with another restaurant on the 18th floor. Four below-grade basement levels would contain conference rooms, 


mechanical equipment, a loading area, and vehicle and bicycle parking. A new privately owned public open 


space (POPOS) would be provided along Merchant Street, in addition to private terraces for hotel guests and 


restaurant patrons. The proposed project would also include improvements to Merchant Street that would be 


consistent with the base requirements of the Better Streets Plan. 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 







 


 


2 


DRAFT EIR:  The Draft EIR finds that implementation of the proposed project would lead to significant and 


unavoidable project-level impacts after the implementation of mitigation measures related to historic 


architectural resources. The Draft EIR, including a detailed project description, is available for public review and 


comment on the Planning Department’s website at http://www.sf-planning.org/sfceqadocs. 


 


The purpose of the public hearing is for the Planning Commission and Department staff to receive comments 


on the adequacy of the EIR. The Planning Commission will not respond to any of the comments or take action 


on the project at this hearing. Call 415-558-6422 the week of the public hearing for a recorded message giving a 


more specific time for the hearing. Certification of the Final EIR will be considered at a later hearing. Contact the 


planner below if you wish to be on the mailing list for future notices. 


 


Public comments on the Draft EIR will be accepted from October 22, 2020 to 5:00 p.m. on December 7, 2020. 


 


For more information or to submit comments on the EIR, please contact: 


Planner: 


Rachel Schuett 


Phone: 


(628) 652-7546 


Email: 


rachel.schuett@sfgov.org 


 


 


 


General Information About Procedures 


Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate 


with the Commission or the Department. All written or oral communications, including submitted personal 


contact information, may be made available to the public for inspection and copying upon request and may 


appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents. 


 


Only commenters on the Draft EIR will be permitted to file an appeal of the certification of the Final EIR to the 


Board of Supervisors. 


 


To request an electronic or paper copy of the Draft EIR contact the planner listed above. Written comments 


should be addressed to Rachel Schuett, San Francisco Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 


1400, San Francisco, CA 94103, or emailed to rachel.schuett@sfgov.org. Comments received at the public 


hearing and in writing will be responded to in a Draft EIR Responses to Comment (RTC) document. 



http://www.sf-planning.org/info

http://www.sf-planning.org/sfceqadocs





 
 
 
Draft Environmental Impact Report publication447 Battery Street (Case No. 2014.1036ENV)
 
Rachel A. Schuett (she/her/hers)
Senior Environmental Planner
Environmental Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department
 
PLEASE NOTE MY NEW ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER AS OF AUGUST 17:
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7546 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail,
and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening
remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on
our services here. 

 

 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES CEREMONIAL
Date: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 11:20:15 AM
Attachments: 10.21.20 Balboa Park Upper Yard Ceremonial Groundbreaking.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 at 11:19 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES
CEREMONIAL
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 21, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES CEREMONIAL

GROUNDBREAKING OF 100% AFFORDABLE HOUSING ON
BALBOA PARK UPPER YARD

Former SFMTA surface parking lot will be converted into 131 homes for families
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today participated in the ceremonial
groundbreaking of 131 affordable homes at Balboa Park Upper Yard (BPUY). The site is one
of two new 100% affordable housing developments getting underway in District 11, and will
feature a revamped Balboa Park BART station plaza as part of the total design. Once
completed in 2023, the transit-oriented development will feature a number of community
benefits, including a licensed early childhood education center with an outdoor activity area
and family resource center.
 
The development advances the City’s strategy for economic recovery, which is centered in
stimulating new job creation and investing in infrastructure that ensures San Francisco’s post-
COVID-19 economy emerges more equitable and resilient than before. Pursuing the
development of 131 units of new affordable housing, including onsite childhood education and
incorporating multiple modes of transportation makes progress on several recommendations
made by the Economic Recovery Task Force and illustrates the City’s efforts to retain and
support its residents. 
 
“Moving forward with affordable housing now is critical as we work to get on the road to

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
groundbreaking of 131 affordable homes at Balboa Park Upper Yard (BPUY). The site is one of 
two new 100% affordable housing developments getting underway in District 11, and will 
feature a revamped Balboa Park BART station plaza as part of the total design. Once completed 
in 2023, the transit-oriented development will feature a number of community benefits, including 
a licensed early childhood education center with an outdoor activity area and family resource 
center. 
 
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
recovery,” said Mayor Breed. “This project will create badly needed new affordable homes in a 
part of the city that hasn’t seen much new housing, and it will bring jobs at a time when we need 
to get people back to work. I want to recognize Supervisor Safaí for his leadership in fighting to 
move affordable housing project forward, and thank everyone who has helped make this project 
possible.” 
 
In 2012, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) Board of Directors 
approved the sale of the BPUY to other partner agencies in order to meet community goals of 
increased transit ridership, new affordable housing and improved services to residents, consistent 
with The Balboa Park Station Area Plan. The BPUY site, a former SFMTA surface parking lot, 
was transferred to the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) in 
2018 for the purposes of developing affordable housing. As an interim use, the site has been 
serving as the City’s first Vehicular Triage Center, which was created as a pilot program to 
provide a secure location and services for people who are living in their vehicles. The 
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing will continue to operate the Center 
through January 2021. 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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“I am extremely proud to bring 131 units of affordable workforce housing to District 11,” said 
Supervisor Ahsha Safaí. “By creating affordable workforce housing, District 11 will be able to 
retain its cultural and economic diversity, this means that working families such as janitors, 
teachers and nurses will be able to live in the city they work in — a win for all. This housing is 
also emblematic of the great things that can be achieved when all stakeholders work toward a 
common goal. Thanks to Mayor Breed, Mission Housing, the community and everyone else who 
helped bring this project to fruition.” 
 
In September 2016, MOHCD selected Related California (Related) and Mission Housing 
Development Corporation (MHDC) to develop, own, and operate the family housing proposed 
for the Site. BPUY is the first affordable housing development in the City to receive planning 
department approval to utilize Senate Bill 35, which has streamlined the approval processes for 
this infill project and will allow construction to start sooner.   
 
“Mission Housing is honored to help develop such an important community asset,” said Sam 
Moss, Executive Director, Mission Housing Development Corporation. “The Balboa Park Upper 
Yard represents the best of what we can accomplish when the community works together to 
build something truly beautiful.”  
   
The 131-unit development at BPUY, which is being developed by MHDC in partnership with 
Related, has 39 apartments set aside for existing HOPE SF residents voluntarily relocating from 
the Sunnydale-Velasco public housing site. Amenities at BPUY will include a 3,994-square-foot 
licensed early childhood education center, a family wellness community resource center operated 
by MHDC’s resident services department, and a commercial space operated by PODER, a 
grassroots environmental justice organization, for bicycle maintenance. 
 
“We’re proud to be working with the Mayor, Supervisor Safaí, BART and our community 
partner, Mission Housing, to develop this mixed-use community adjacent to public transportation 
that will provide the residents of District 11 the housing and services they deserve,” said Bill 
Witte, Chairman and CEO, Related California. “We cannot let the pandemic distract us from our 
work to make San Francisco a more equitable city.”  
 
As part of the funding applications, the developers worked closely with BART and SFMTA to 
complete a redesign of the southern portion of the Balboa Park BART Station Plaza, in order to 
improve bicycle and pedestrian improvements in the area. The result will be a brand-new 
pedestrian plaza next to BPUY and a new vehicle drop off area will that be built at the same time 
as the housing.   
 
“The Balboa Park Upper Yard project and new BART plaza are smart investments in this vibrant 
neighborhood,” said Bevan Dufty, Member of the BART Board of Directors. “Transit-oriented 
development, advancing affordable housing and safe pedestrian and bicycle access, builds 
complete communities with vital access to jobs, services, and cultural destinations by BART.” 
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BPUY is supported by California Strategic Growth Council’s Affordable Housing and 
Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC) with funds from California Climate Investments—
Cap-and-Trade Dollars at Work. The developers submitted a successful application for nearly 
$30 million in grant dollars, which includes $20 million in housing funds, $3.3 million for new 
BART cars, another $5 million for the BART Plaza and another $1.2 million for Ocean Avenue 
bike and pedestrian safety improvements, in partnership with the SFMTA. Residents of the new 
building will also receive free Muni passes for three years. In addition, the developers were 
awarded an Infrastructure Infill Grant to fill the Plaza gap for another $3.5 million, bringing the 
total contribution from the State to approximately $33.2 million. Locally, the BART Plaza also 
received another $1 million for capital costs from the San Francisco County Transportation 
Authority from Prop K. 
 
“The Balboa Park Upper Yard exemplifies the type high-quality, transit-oriented development 
the California Strategic Growth Council is proud to support,” said Louise Bedsworth, Executive 
Director, California Strategic Growth Council. “We congratulate the project partners on today’s 
groundbreaking, and commend them for working with the community to realize affordable 
housing options that connect San Francisco families with transit and active transportation, green 
spaces, and on-site childcare – all while reducing the emissions that contribute to climate 
change.”  
 
“HCD is proud to be a small part of this giant accomplishment,” said Gustavo Velasquez, 
Director, California Department of Housing and Community Development. “With funding from 
our Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities and Infill Infrastructure Grant programs 
and an ongoing partnership with the City of San Francisco, we continue to fund housing that 
supports the state’s greenhouse gas reduction goals and creates healthier communities and 
Californians by making it easier for residents and neighbors to live near the things they need so 
they can walk, bike, and take transit.” 
 
The nine-story building, designed by Mithun includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and 
three-bedroom apartments. Once complete, the new homes will be available to applicants with a 
broad range of incomes including 40%, 50%, 74% and 104% Area Median Income (AMI) or 
below. Communities United for Health and Justice led a diverse coalition of District 11 residents 
to partner with key stakeholders on the design of BPUY.  
 
“This has been a true neighborhood-wide effort, with diverse community residents planning and 
leading the way, combining the first-hand knowledge and expertise of numerous community 
members,” said Jessie Fernandez, program manager, Communities United for Health and 
Justice. “Together we have flipped the script of community development by forging a bold 
community-based vision first. The Upper Yard represents the very best in collaboration between 
the community and decision makers. Our success at the Balboa Upper Yard should set an 
example of people-focused planning for our ever-changing city to always keep its people at the 
forefront.”  
 
Major financing for BPUY was provided by a $32.5 million investment from MOHCD that 
enabled the $122.8 million project to move forward. Operating subsidies will be delivered 
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recovery,” said Mayor Breed. “This project will create badly needed new affordable homes in
a part of the city that hasn’t seen much new housing, and it will bring jobs at a time when we
need to get people back to work. I want to recognize Supervisor Safaí for his leadership in
fighting to move affordable housing project forward, and thank everyone who has helped
make this project possible.”
 
In 2012, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) Board of Directors
approved the sale of the BPUY to other partner agencies in order to meet community goals of
increased transit ridership, new affordable housing and improved services to residents,
consistent with The Balboa Park Station Area Plan. The BPUY site, a former SFMTA surface
parking lot, was transferred to the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
(MOHCD) in 2018 for the purposes of developing affordable housing. As an interim use, the
site has been serving as the City’s first Vehicular Triage Center, which was created as a pilot
program to provide a secure location and services for people who are living in their vehicles.
The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing will continue to operate the Center
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
common goal. Thanks to Mayor Breed, Mission Housing, the community and everyone else
who helped bring this project to fruition.”
 
In September 2016, MOHCD selected Related California (Related) and Mission Housing
Development Corporation (MHDC) to develop, own, and operate the family housing proposed
for the Site. BPUY is the first affordable housing development in the City to receive planning
department approval to utilize Senate Bill 35, which has streamlined the approval processes
for this infill project and will allow construction to start sooner. 
 
“Mission Housing is honored to help develop such an important community asset,” said Sam
Moss, Executive Director, Mission Housing Development Corporation. “The Balboa Park
Upper Yard represents the best of what we can accomplish when the community works
together to build something truly beautiful.” 
 
The 131-unit development at BPUY, which is being developed by MHDC in partnership with
Related, has 39 apartments set aside for existing HOPE SF residents voluntarily relocating
from the Sunnydale-Velasco public housing site. Amenities at BPUY will include a 3,994-
square-foot licensed early childhood education center, a family wellness community resource
center operated by MHDC’s resident services department, and a commercial space operated
by PODER, a grassroots environmental justice organization, for bicycle maintenance.
 
“We’re proud to be working with the Mayor, Supervisor Safaí, BART and our community
partner, Mission Housing, to develop this mixed-use community adjacent to public
transportation that will provide the residents of District 11 the housing and services they
deserve,” said Bill Witte, Chairman and CEO, Related California. “We cannot let the
pandemic distract us from our work to make San Francisco a more equitable city.” 
 
As part of the funding applications, the developers worked closely with BART and SFMTA to



complete a redesign of the southern portion of the Balboa Park BART Station Plaza, in order
to improve bicycle and pedestrian improvements in the area. The result will be a brand-new
pedestrian plaza next to BPUY and a new vehicle drop off area will that be built at the same
time as the housing. 
 
“The Balboa Park Upper Yard project and new BART plaza are smart investments in this
vibrant neighborhood,” said Bevan Dufty, Member of the BART Board of Directors. “Transit-
oriented development, advancing affordable housing and safe pedestrian and bicycle access,
builds complete communities with vital access to jobs, services, and cultural destinations by
BART.”
 
BPUY is supported by California Strategic Growth Council’s Affordable Housing and
Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC) with funds from California Climate Investments
—Cap-and-Trade Dollars at Work. The developers submitted a successful application for
nearly $30 million in grant dollars, which includes $20 million in housing funds, $3.3 million
for new BART cars, another $5 million for the BART Plaza and another $1.2 million for
Ocean Avenue bike and pedestrian safety improvements, in partnership with the SFMTA.
Residents of the new building will also receive free Muni passes for three years. In addition,
the developers were awarded an Infrastructure Infill Grant to fill the Plaza gap for another $3.5
million, bringing the total contribution from the State to approximately $33.2 million. Locally,
the BART Plaza also received another $1 million for capital costs from the San Francisco
County Transportation Authority from Prop K.
 
“The Balboa Park Upper Yard exemplifies the type high-quality, transit-oriented development
the California Strategic Growth Council is proud to support,” said Louise Bedsworth,
Executive Director, California Strategic Growth Council. “We congratulate the project
partners on today’s groundbreaking, and commend them for working with the community to
realize affordable housing options that connect San Francisco families with transit and active
transportation, green spaces, and on-site childcare – all while reducing the emissions that
contribute to climate change.”
 
“HCD is proud to be a small part of this giant accomplishment,” said Gustavo Velasquez,
Director, California Department of Housing and Community Development. “With funding
from our Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities and Infill Infrastructure Grant
programs and an ongoing partnership with the City of San Francisco, we continue to fund
housing that supports the state’s greenhouse gas reduction goals and creates healthier
communities and Californians by making it easier for residents and neighbors to live near the
things they need so they can walk, bike, and take transit.”
 
The nine-story building, designed by Mithun includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom,
and three-bedroom apartments. Once complete, the new homes will be available to applicants
with a broad range of incomes including 40%, 50%, 74% and 104% Area Median Income
(AMI) or below. Communities United for Health and Justice led a diverse coalition of District
11 residents to partner with key stakeholders on the design of BPUY.

“This has been a true neighborhood-wide effort, with diverse community residents planning
and leading the way, combining the first-hand knowledge and expertise of numerous
community members,” said Jessie Fernandez, program manager, Communities United for
Health and Justice. “Together we have flipped the script of community development by
forging a bold community-based vision first. The Upper Yard represents the very best in



collaboration between the community and decision makers. Our success at the Balboa Upper
Yard should set an example of people-focused planning for our ever-changing city to always
keep its people at the forefront.” 
 
Major financing for BPUY was provided by a $32.5 million investment from MOHCD that
enabled the $122.8 million project to move forward. Operating subsidies will be delivered
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Project Based Voucher
program administered by the San Francisco Housing Authority.
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